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Report of Investigation 9 Feb '50
Chief, Inv Br Deceased Section, VA Br.

(Attn: Capt. Gtanhiser)

' 1, Attached hereto, report of Investigetions on | ST0, ;
Alexander, VALDEZ, Llisﬂu NOVENO, PFederico anﬂ ASTORC &, hatariu.
as ruguas%ed by ruur nfficn‘ :

2, Attached hereto alln ara 201 Files of SICTO, Alex~
ander, VALVEZ, Eliseo, NOVENO derico and ASTOLGAy lHasario,

3. Request aﬁknuwladgmant nf_racuipf?

Refer to our Filn.ﬂul: 1385, 1886
. . 1867, 1888

D, N. SPRWL
| . - Captain Inf
Inel: a/s ' Chief, Investigation Iranch
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REGUEST FOR FIELD INVESTIGATION

FIOM__ DS, Vet Br T0__Investigation Br pATE 14 Nov 49
1. Reguest that a field investigation be conducted in the case of:
ALEXANDER SISt Pvt R=31090¢
- ELISEO 0. VALDEZ Sgt NR
0 Py NOVENO Prt i NR
Firat lame Middle lame Last Mame Rank ASIT
NASARIO ASTORGA ' Pvt NR

2+ Information reguired:

@, Proof of USAFFE-& guerrilla service of subjects.

bs Where was Form 48 reproduced?
G Prﬂn.‘l' of relationship of claimants to subjects.

/ | |
3. Diserepancies noted by this section:

‘8. USAFFE & cuerrilla service affisnts are questionable and

should not be re=-gontacted. New proof is desiréd.
bs Form 48 was not produced at AGRD nor wes inguiry made to

claimants by AGRD.
¢+ There 15 a possibility thet subjects are fictitious or that

relationship to claimants is lpa.urinul.
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INVESTIGATION ERANCH - AGRD

COMMENTS ON INVESTIGATION OF SPECIAL CASES

-Following are Investigator's comments on Field Investigation
of Special Cases in Bagulc City, Mt. Province.

S8ISTO, Alexander QUR FILE # 1885
Valdez, Eliseo O. OUR FILE # 1886
NOVENO, Federico P. OUR FILE # 1887
ASTORGA, Nasarilo OUR FILE # 1888

INFORMATION REQUIRED

g&. Froof of USAFFE and Guerilla service of subject.
b. VWhere was Form 48 reproduced.

¢. Proof of relationship of claimants to subjects.

Approximately fifteen persons were contacted who elaim to have
been inducted in Bagulo City about the same time as subjects in
these cases (in USAFFE), but none could be found whe remembered
these names, elther in USAFFE or in later guerrilla service in the
Cushing Regiment.. Affiants in Case Folders of subjects were not
re-contacted, except in the case of Pedro Carantea, who could not
remember any of these names, altho in an affldavit executed 12 May
1949, he givee a complete chronological history of the military-
guerrlilla activities of Federico Noveno.

Practically all of the affiants in Case Foldere of subjects,
for UBAFIE and Guerrilla service, and practically all of new af-
flante contacted are listed as officers in the Cushing Regiment
under Col. Abesrin, and most of these people claim induction in
USAFFE at Camp Henry T. Allen, Bagulo on dates ranging from 17
December 1941 to Eg December 1941 by Capt. Isidoro Biapno, who
is now dead. The 201 File of Capt. Siapno indilcates that he was

inducted on 18 December 1941.

Agcording to the sworn certifleate of Edmundo G. HNavarro,
which is ecorroborated by the eworn certificates of Manuel L. Ver-
zosa, no officials in the lst Military Distriet were authorized
to make inductions into USAFFE except the District Commander, Col.
Manuel L. Verzosa, and the District Adjutant, Lt. Edmundo G. Nav-
arro, and this authority was not delegated to any other person.

It is also stated in Edmundo Navarros certificate that inductions
were made on 21st and 22nd of December 1941, and all personnal
inducted then were instructed to leave Baguio with the eonvoy
which was reported ambushed on Kennon Road on the night of th; 22nd

of December 1C041l.

It would seem that statements containe
and that of Tomae T. Asunecion, former Diatrgc%nFigg;iecggﬁigésat‘E’
would eliminate USAFFE status of Capt. Isidoro Siapno, and all
USAFFE claims based on lnduction by Capt. Bilapne, in addition to
discrediting all affiants swearing to USAFFE claims of induction
by Capt, Ieidoro Siapno.

Edmunde G. Navarro is considered by this Investigator a very
reliable witness, both from his former duties as District Adjutant
and his present position aes Fleld Examiner for the USEA which makes
him unlikely to make unrellable or false statements to help & claim-
ant. Manuel L. Verzosa 1s believed to be a reliable witness, but
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g‘;'_g liable 4o g8ign affidavits in support of elaims without due con=
- eratlon of authenticity. The same apolys to Tomas T. Asuncion,
ormer Finsnce Officer of the lst Military District.

The Form 48s in question were found to have been reproduced

in the offies of Pedro Tawas and Joseph Kreuger who 1s the clerk-
L¥pist in this office. This information is supported by affidavits.
Pedro Tawas wae asked about reproducling these forms, and he at first
denied thet they were coming fom hies office, but when told that cer-
tain people had made affidavite as to where they had secured them
and for how much, he admltted they were reprocducing them, and sald

he guessed there was no law against reproducing these forms". This
investigator was told later by Bernardo Valdez, one of those who
had secured these forme from Tawas, that Tawas was very angry wlth
him for signing a statement as to where he had secured them.

Joseph Kreuger, and his brother Frank Krueger ha¥e CIC records
on file in this office (CIC Detach. AGRD) for suspected collaborat-
lon activites in Baguio during occupation by the Japaneese.

It is believed by this Investigator that True Copies of some
documents submitted as evidence of proof of relationship in these
cases are fraudulent. In the case of Alexander Sisto, no originals
could be found of the baptismal certificates submlitted as proof of
relationgship. Church records were destroyed, and the clalimant has
no originals. A True Copy of the marrlage contract was submitted
in the case of another case, Alejandroc Maerty, but the clalmant has
no original, and records were destroyed in the Office of the Civil

Reglstrar in Bagulc during the war, a2nd this Form 1s no longer in
use.,

Jesus Jaramillo was contacted and asked whether all documents
were verified by him, when he affixed his seal on True Coples as
Publiec Defender, but he admitted that on account of having much
work in his office, he frequently relled on the word of his clerk

that documents were authentic, and signed them without verifylng
them himself.

Two affiants contacted, Pedro Carantes, and Lazero P. Espejo,
who could not remember subjects in question, altho having mede prev=-
ious complete statements of the military and guerrilla history of
subjects, were asked about their utterly conflicting statements
(after having signed certificates), and they admitted signing an
affidavit for "someons" who approached them, and sald "he" (subjlect)
wags "in our unit".

Dr. Viecente Q. Lucero admits that he signed Death Certificates
in Baguio after the war, without actual knowledge of circumatances
or dates of deaths.

o DONALD R. GREEN
Inclosurese Field Investigator, U. 5. Army
Rogster of Officers, Cushing Regiment
Certificate - Edmundo &G. Navarro
Certificate - Manuel L. Ver=zosa
Certificate = Tomas T. Asuncion
Affidsvit = - Manuel L. Verzosa
Affidevit - - Manuel L. Verzoea
Memo from 201 File of Capt. Islidorc Slapno
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[ FIL-AMERTICAIN GUERRILIAS
. COLOMEL CHARLES W. FOLSOM UNIT
« HEADQU ARTERS |
CUSHIEG RECIIENT, NORTH LOZOH
(FAG REGIMENT)
In the fisld

SUBJECT: Confimation of Appointments

TO : The Commander=in=-Chief
FIL-AIFRICAN GUERRILAS
In the Field
Thru Channels

1. Reguest that Office to confirm the appointments of the following
Officers who orgenizaed Guerrilla Unit known as the CUSHING REGIMENT in
honor of +the late MAJOR WALT.R CGISHING in the City of Baguio and Mountain
Provinece with their correspomdimg renks and designations under Li. Colonel

CHARIES W. FOLSOLI, USA:

(1) Dolonel ISIDORO ABEHIN -

(2) Lt Colonel ISIDOHO SIAFNO

(5) Major RIDOFLO YAP

(1,) Major SINFOROSO FANGONIL

(5) Ma jor MAXIMO CAWED

(£) Major EMILIO F. ABCOIN

(7) Ma jor GABRIEL RILLOHTA -

(B) Major MARTANO LACSAMANA

(9) Major COANELIO C. AGUTO-
(10) Major LUCAS FAREDES

(11) Ma jor EMILIO 1. HEYES

(12) Ma jor EMILIO L LABORTE .
(13) Major IUAN L. FONTANILLA
(14) Major MANWUEL V. RIILOC

{15-} EEPtEiﬂ FLORENCIA C. CHUZ -
(16) Captain FERMANDO A. SABADO
(17) Captain LAZARO ESFEJO

(18) Captain MODESTO C. RAMENTO
(19) Captain TORIBIO S. MAYO
(20) Captain RAMON Be ROJAS
(21) Captain GUZMAN A. CARLIFO
(22) Captain FERNAIDO B. BAHUELO
(23) Captain JACCB ABAS

(2) Captein DIONISIO F. ALAFREZ’
(25) Cantain FELIX AGUTO

(26) Captain LA4RY 0GAS

(27) Captain CANUTO DICSEN

(28) Captain TRANGUILINO ABUBO
(29) Ceptain FEDRO TAWAS

(30) Captain BONIFACIO MARAYAG
(31) Captain GIL RIMANDO

(32) Captain TUREANC DE GUIA
(33) Captain CONRADO RALCS

Commanding Officer
Executive O0fficer
Se=1

S -

S-3

S =l

CO, 1at Bn

CP, 2nd Bn

Co, Srd Bn

Liaison Officer and
Technical adviser
Regimental Surgeon
Regimental Chaplian
Judge Advocate
Dental Surgeon
Chief AHC and Fres, WAS
Finance Officer

CO Special Detail
Asst 5-1

Asst S=2

. As3t S5=3

Asst B=l

CO, "A" Company
€0, "B® Company
COy "C" Company
COy "D" Company
CC, "E" Company
CO, "F* Company
€O "G" Company
COy "H" Comparny
GO, "I" Company
C0, "K" Company
Co, "L" Company
CO, "M" Cempany

(Sgd) M._
Lt LYolonel, G=FA

Commanding

A TRUE COPY BXTRACTED FROM THE ®PL FILE OF
Lt TORIBIO S. MAYO, 0-BCYH/Y

Chief, In?aﬂtigntiﬂni Sec ;‘

Investigation Br

daetesnes
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i
1st Indorsement
Genaral Hegdguarters, FIL-AMERICAN GUERRILLAS, In the Field
TO: The Commander-In=Chief, FIL AMERICAN GUERHILLAS, In the Field

1. Submitted for confirmation

(Sgd) MIGUEL EENDGH
Brigedier General, G-PA
Ad jutant General

2nd lIndorsement
General Headquarters, FIL-AMEHICAN GQUERRILILS, In the Field
TO: The Adjutant General, FIL AMERTCAN GUERRILLAS, In the Field

1, Appointment confirmed.

(Szd) CHARLES W. FOLSOM
Lt=Colonel, USA
Comnander=in=Chisf

Srd Indorsement
Genersl Headgquarters, FIL AMERICAN GUERRILLAS, In the Field

T0: The Commanding Officer, CUSHIING HEGIMENT, NORTH LIZON
(FAG) Regiment, In the Field

1., Returned with proper confirmatione

(Sgd) MIGUEL PENDON
Brigadier General G-PA
Ad jutant General

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
(Sgd) Mauro E. Bravo
(t) MNAURO E. BRAVO
2d Lt Inf Ap 0=l2660
Agst CIC, RFD Sec., 1"MD AP

A TRUE COPY EXTRACTED FROM THE 201 FILE OF
Lt TORIBIO 8. MAYO, 0-BO9LT

S M

Chief, Bnvestigation Ssc g
Investigation Branch
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I, EDMUNDO G. NAVARRO , _33 years old, _married , reslding at
Lucena, Quezon Province , hereby declare that I understand my rights

under the constitution and laws of the Fhilippines; that I also un-
dersatand that my statements will be used to prove materlal faets 1n
gupport of a claim for veterans benefits from the United States gov-
ernment, and that I make these statements voluntarily and freely:

I was inducted into USAFFE on 31 Bagust 1941 at}{ Bengued, Abra,
¢ with trainees and officers of the 1llth FA (PA), by Lt. Eric F. Davis.

He was with the Philippine Scouts then. In September 1941, I bescamse
the Distriet Adjutant of the let Military Distriet, PA, stationed at
Camp Henry T. Allen, Baguio.

\ On 20 December 1941, all of the Headquarters personnel of the
? lst Military District were inducted into USAFFE by Major Everett L.
Warner, 88th FA (P3). He was then Provést Marshall, Camp Hohn Hay.

I received instructions by radio from Headguarters, Pnilippine
/ Army, authorizing the District Commander, or the District Adjutant,
to induct reservists, and I remember that I was not authorized to
induet any eclvilians into USAFFE at that time. On the 21st and 22nd
. of December 1941, prior to our evacuation of Bagulo, I inducted pos-
2lbly one hundred reserviste, including officers and enlisted men.
Ag far as I remember, there were no inductions after 22 Descember 1941

because the Headquarters of the lst Military District was preparing
to evacuate on the morning of the 23rd.

Early on the morning of the 23rd of December, we received arders by
radlo from Hg, Philippine Army, in Manila to evacuate the entire of-
fice force of the lst Military Distriet to Manila by way of Bontoe
&énd Nueva Vizeaya. We had radioed the night before that Kennon Road
was blocked. On the evening of the 22nd, reports were received by
our Headquarters that the convoy from Camp Trinidsd, bound for Man=-
1la, wae ambushed on the Kennon Road. All of those that I had in-
ducted had been instructed to take that convoy for Camp Murphy. I
never learned how many of those I inducted were with the eonvoy, be-
cause the following morning, we left Bagulo. We were zbout six or
seven truck loade ae far ae Bontoe, where we had to leave the trucks
and proceed on foot. As far as I know, no USAFFE pereonnel who were
then on duty, or had bken inducted, were left behing.

I do not remember the namee of the people who
tho I could remembsr some of the faces, hegiuga ? ﬂaz igﬁ”ﬁ;“ﬁ' ai-
and I had been very busy calling the 1lth Infantry Division (PA tﬂ
activg duty.t The ﬂg:y man I remembep definitely is ﬂ
name do not remember, byt who I heve gmes

I do not recognized the names of Siapno, ﬂE Eg::iil timg;dlniﬁanila.
indueting personally in my office, mostly in mass induntlnn: gﬁ:ae

people carried papers with them ide
calling them to active duty. ntifying them as reserviste and

i

As far as I know, Col. Manuel T, Ve
p ing, because he was busy with othep matt:;g?ﬂ&gédh:n asiu:i :;%?ct_
authority in induetions. I 4id not delegate any autﬁa Thy & re
one to make aubsequent inductions, and ss far Ik ority for any~-
thority was glven by Col. Veprszoag, as now, no such au=-

-~
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I do know that all reserviste inducted by me on 2lst and 22nd
of December 1941, were instructed to be with the convoy leaving for
Camp Murphy on the afternoon of the 22nd. As I have stated before,

I do not Enow how many of these men reached Camp Murphy, and we re-
celved reporte that the convoy was ambushed on the EKennon Road.

I hereby certify that I have read all of the foregoing state-
ments; that they are made by me as true and correct with full know=-
ledge of the faect that severe penalties involving fines and impris-

onment sre prescribed by Act No. 2567, Fhilippine Legislature, En-
acted February 3, 1916 and still in force and effect. (Article XV,
Fhilippine Constitution and Art. 366 Revised Penal Code).

&H__@?/-Lw

EDMUNDO G. NAVARRO
Signature

Witnesesed by the undersigned on _3rd day of _February , 1950
at_Lucena, Quezon Province

Ve74 A H. GREEN
Fleld Investigator, U. 5. Army

I]'I-fi’_'lA.*l-iH[_[-'n;]_} )
Authoriny At ﬁ T o
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I, _MANIEL L, VERZOSA , 86  ycars old, _jppeciegd., residing
at 285 Memle Tlzgl ity hercby declare that I understand my rights

under the Constitution and laws of the Philippines; that I also undor=

stand that my statements will bo uscd to prove material facts in support
of a elaim for veterans bonefits from the Unitud States government, and

that I make thesc statements voluntarily and frecly:

Prier to the wvar, I was 2 ¥ajor in the Philippine Army,
stationed et Baguio, where I was District Commander of the lst
Military Distriet,

After LSie cutbreel of the war, I was indueted in UBAITE

on the 20th of December 1941, by liajor Warner, Provest Officer
of Camp John Hey. He assigned me the duty of inducting officers
and reserve officers in USAFFE. Subseguent inductions into the
USAFFE were made by me and my Adjutant, Lt. Edmundo Navarro up
to the time I evacuated Baguio with my Coummand and Staff on 23
December 1941 to Bontoe, from where we proceeded to Manila via
Bayambong, HNueva Vizcaya by foot.

During the period between 21st and 23rd of December waen
we were inducting personnel into USAFFE, I recall the names
of some of the men whom I inducted persomally, but none of the
enlisted men. We indueted several groups of around thirty or
forty each and I cannot remember all of these men.

I do remember Isidoro Siapno and Lt. Disinl, now deceased,
who were among the first to be lnducted, together with Major
Aberin, Felix Aguto, Dionislio Alafris and Sinforoso Fangonil.
There were many others whose names I eannot recall at present.

When I evacuated Baguio, most of these newly inducted off=
icers were left behind as a nucleus for an underground movement,
and also to maintain peace and order. At the last moment, I was
ordersed to dispose of all arms of the PA Armory, and these arms
were issued to all persons who agreed to use them against the
invading Japs.

XX XX XAAAXX
OO 00

I hercby certify that I (have rcad) G hod - 4 Eg‘ﬁ_ of the
forcgoing statcemonts; that they arc mude by mo a8 truc and eorrect with
full knowledge of the faet that scvore ponaltics involving fincs and
imprisonment urc preseribed by det No. 2567, Philippine Legislaturo,
Enictod Fobruary 3, 1916 und still in forec and offoet (Articlc xv,
Philippinc Constitution and Art, 366 Reviscd Penal Code),

s/ Manuel L, VTarzosa
L MANURY L. YEREOSA
Signaturc

Witncesed by the undersigned ongus  day of Falrusrg . 1950
ot Times Bullding - ¥apila .

s/ Dopald R. Green

t/ PONALD R. CREEN
Fiold Invc:stfgﬂtnr, U. 3, Army

A TRUE COPY Fﬂ?ﬁii;ij%;z::iﬁ
W d DECLASSIFIED _
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e GERTIELCATE

T MANUEL L. VERZOSA 56 yoars old, Married , residing

at _75 Memlo, Rizal City hcroby declurc that I understand my rights

under the Constitution and laws of the Philippines; that I also undcr-
stand that my statements will be uscd to prove matorial facte in support
of a claim for veterans benefits from the Unitod States government, and
thit I moke thesc statements voluntarily and freelys

This statement ie in amplification of my sworn certificate
executed 2nd February 1950.

At the time I was Ristriet Commander of the 1lst Military
District and inducting reservists into USAFFE in Baguio, my-
golf and my Distriet Adjutant, Lt. Edmurndo Navarro, were the
only persons authorized to make such inductions. I left sueh
inductions to my Adjutant which was part of his normal functionsa.

At no time wae authority delegated to any person other than
myeelf or my Adjutant to make inductions into USAFFE. I hed no
authority to make such delegation of authority, and when we eva=
cuated Bagulo on 23rd December 1941, no perscn was left from
the 1lst Military District authorized by me to make inductions
in USAFFE,

I hereby ecortify that I (have rcad) (essbhodxmmrtomed 211 of the
forcpoing statements;y thit thoy arc mude by me as truc ind corrcet with
full kaowlodge of the faet that scverc penaltics involving fincs and
imovizcrument arc preserdbed by Act No, 2567, Philippine Logislaturo,
Enacted Febroary 3, 1916 and still in force and offiet (Article XV,
Philjiopinc Constitution and aArt. 366 Reviscd Ponal Code),

MAWUEL L. ZOBA
Signiture

Witnoesed by the undersigned on Tth_.. day of Fﬁhmgri_, 19 ED r
1t _TI'E T1m5 ll&E- I!-'ﬂl.n.j.l_g_.

- a

Sfjéq;ééﬁzﬁygéiﬁf C;zz ,35%1435i5*"m,
t/ DONALD R. GREEN

Ficld Investigator, U. S, Army
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1, Topas T. Asuncion , _ 55  yoars old, MBitad& . rosiding
Quezon City '
at 72_EKamunins Reoad, , hereby deelure that I understond my rights

under the Constitution and laws of the Philippines; that I also undcr=
stand that my statements will be uscd to prove materiil facts in support
of a eclaim for vetcrans benefits from the United States government, and
that I make thosc statements voluntarily and freoely:

T wag the District Finance Officer of the lst Military
District, and after the outlreak of the war, I was inducted
in the USAFFB on or about 20 December 1941 by an officer whose
name I do not remember, from Camp John Hay.

I know there were msa inducted at that time, b I do
not remember thelir names, cause of my dutiss as a nance

Officer, which kept me occupled with Finance records. As
Finance Officer, I was not authorized to make subsequent in=
duetions, and I did not induct anybody.

I ecannot remember the names of those inducted because 1
paid sof many. I was paying USAFFE officers and enlisted men
up to 1 February 1942 from PA Hq on Bataan. I left Bagulo on
2% December 1941, ahsad of Col. Verzosa and hig staff, and I
grrived in Manlla ahead of them with my money.

Our instructions from Headquarters of Camp John Hay, which
we received on 23 Decembver, were for all USAFFE to evacuate Bag-
uio, and all of thaése who had been induected were supposed to be
with us. However many who after being 1lnducted did not estay with
ue, BO that when we were ordered to vacate Bagulc, there were
very few of us. Those who stayed in Baguio were never pald by
me, payrolls were never submitted to me,.

Quite a lot of these people have approached me for affidavits
to the effect that they were not pald, so they could colleet telr
three months advance pay from the Fhilippine Govermment, but I
will not aporove these affidavits unless they are approved by Col.
Verzoza. The following are names of men who did not come with
us when we left Bagulo, and I did not see any of these people
after they joined us: (See following page )

I horeby eortify that I (have road) (RxsckmEmxopdxmex®x) 211 of the
forcgoing statements; that thoy arc made by mo as truc and eorrcet with
full knowledge of the faet that scvere penaltics involving finecs and
imprisonment arc preseribed by dct No. 2567, Philippine Logislaturc
Enicted February 3, 1916 and still in forec and offcet (Article XV >
Fhilippinc Constitution and Art, 366 Roviged Ponal Code), :

1 N N
L@-MG.@TA
_TOMAS 'f, ASUNGION

clgnature

Witnesacd by the undersigned on _2gd  day of F;E_'_br‘uﬂl‘z ot 1?EE_;
at 72 KeKamuning Boad .., _Quezon City, Manile .

G0 Do

g/ “
Inclosure = 8 &/ DONALD R, GREEN
Ficld Investigator, U, S, Army

PAGE 1 of 2 PAGES
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CERIIELICATE

1, TCMAS T. ASUNCTON = 5% years old, Widower , residing
Quezon City :

ot T2=K Kapunling Road , hereby deelure that I understend my rights

under the Constitution and laws of the Philippines; that I alse undcr-
stand that my statements will be uscd to prove materisl facts in support
of a elainm for vetcrans beonefits from the United States government, and
that I make these statements voluntarily and freely:

Isidoro Aberin Sinforoso Fangonil
Tgidoro Slapno Gabriel Rillorts
Mariano Lacsamana Cornelic C. Aguto
Emilio L. Reyes Juan L. Fontanilla
Manuel V. Rillo Lazaro Espejo
Toribio 5. Mayo Felix Aguto
Tranquilino Abubo Dionisio Alafriz
FPedro Tawas Gil Rimando
Turiano De Quia Conrado Ramos

I know all these men personally, and they have all approach=
ed me for affidavits, but I did not sign them for I am not sure
of them. I know that all of these men should have been with us
if they were inducted in USAFFE, and they were not with us on
Batazn because I believe they were afraid to go to Bataen.

Their reasons for not going to Bataan, were that they were

cut off, but the rest of us reached Batasan, and I reached it with
my money.

I kercby cortify that I (have road) (XamcNmErewdxboomx) 11 of the
forcgoing statomonts; that they arc made by me as true and ecorrcect with

full knowledge of the fact that severe ponaltics involving fincs and
imprisonment ure preseribed by aet No, 2567, Philippinc Logislature,
Enicted Februiry 3, 1916 und still in forec ond offiet (4rticlc XV,

Prilippinc Constitution und Art. 366 Reviscd Penul Code),

A =
- . ;
Signaturc
Witnosscd by the undersigned on 2ND__ duy of Febru L 1920,
1t 72=k Kemuning Road |, Quezon City, Manila A

8/ AT cele @ i«*%};i{,ﬁu_\

t/ DONALD R. GREEN
Fiold Investigator, U. 8. Army
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AFFIDAVIET

I, MANUEL L. ViRZ08A, cf legel age, married, and a resident
of Manila, after having been duly sworn in accordance with law
depoee and sayt

That I am an officer in the fhilip- ine Army with the
rank of Major on duty with the Inspectior General Serviece,
HPA, Manila;

That =2t the outbresk of the present war, 1 was asaigned
as District Commander of the lst kilitary Distriet, Sagulo
Clty, Mt. Frovinoe;

1 That on or about 18 December 1941, in pursuance of
instruetions recelved dy me from Headquarters, PA, Manila,
orders were issued out 1n my district calling all reserve
officére to actlve duly;

That Oapt. Isldoro 8iapno, Inf. was cne of the offlecers
whe reported to my Headguarters cn or about 18 December 1941,
arnd who was thereby actlivated and lnduced on the same day
by my Distrlet Adjutant, 2nd Lieut. Edamunde Lavarro, Inf.j

That becsuse of military resscns, Capt. Zlapno wae not
able tc Jjoln my command when we moved ocut from Bagulc for
Manlla vias Zontuve-Bayambong, on the 23%3rd day of Lecember,
1941,

That 1t ie of ny personsl knowledge that all roads and
other means c¢f comnunieation leading cut of Bagulo had al-
ready been under direet physical control by the Japanese
forcee on said date, thereby leaving esid Capt. 8lasno with
other members of my ocommand marooned in said elty.

IN WITHESS WHSREOF I hereunto set my hand thie 18th day of
July, 1945, at Manila, Fhilippines.

/8/ Maruel L. Verszosa
/tf hqﬂrlr'l' ..-IJ ]"_“' 11?- iquE“l

SUBSCR [BED AND SWORN to before me this 18th day of July,

1945, at Manila, Philipoines.

/e/ Oarlos P. Ramos
/t/ OARLOS P. RAMOS
let Lt., J.A.@,8,

OERTIFIED A TRUE COPY

(et 00 Lee

Field Investigator, 1.3, nr:q
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPCINES )
1 8, B.

OAMP MURPHY, QUEZON OITY )

AEFLIDANIT

I, MANUEL L VERZOSA, Filiplnec, of legal age, married
and a resident of Manlla, after having been duly sworn in
accordance with law depose and say:

That I am an officer in the Armed Forces of the Philip-
plnes with the rank of Lt Colonel and &t present assigned
with the War Crimese Commission in Manila;

That at the outbreak of War 11, I was aseigned as a
Distriet Commander of the lst Miliiary Distriet at Bagulo
Clty, Mt. Province;

That all the personnel of the let Military Distriet
ineluding the late Capt ISIDORO SIAPNC who was cglled to
aotive duty cn 18 Dec 1941 and indueted into the USAFFE by
my Distriet A@Jutant on that same date were absorbed into
the 1lth Infantry Divislon, USAFFE while we were ptill in

Baguic City;

That thils affldsvit ies made upeon requeat of the wldow
of Capt SIAFND and in amplificatlon of my former affidavit
gwern by me on the 18th day of July, 1945,

Deponeth s veth not.

/8/ Mamel L Verszosa
/t/ MANUEL L VERZOSA
Lt Gol., Inf (AFP)

Bubscribed and sworn to before me this 26th day of
November , 1947 at Campn Murphy, Quegzon City.

-

/8/ Gabriel F. Tomas
/t/ GABRIEL P, TOMAS
dajor, B B
Chief Insp Br, F8

CERTIFIED A TRUK QOFX

Finld'Iuvnitlthur. Ue By Army

DECLASSIFIED

Authority r""'rf'r”l I)FL 3_5”1



MEEO FOR RECCHD

25 Uctober 19LE

1, The claim for arrears in pay of Captain Isidro R. Siapno
(deceased) has been erroneously and unjudiciously determined in
the opinion of the undersigned.

2. The claimant, wife of "Captain" Siapno, states in her form
9, dated 6 November 1946, that from 2, December 1941 to August 1943
he was a civilian practicing attorney. I presume that she, being
his wife, was in a position to know of these factis, yet:

a., Claimant was given missing status from 2l Uecember 174l
to 5 May 1942 because of sickness in the form of "malaria" and "beri-
beri." These diseases were contacted in the service - "5 days walting
in cam."

b. From 5 May 1942 to August 1943 missing status granted
because of guerrilla service with the Bontoc-Kalinga Guerrilla Unit,
a "guerrilla" unit which never applied for guerrilla recognition,
and he was allowed to cover guerrilla activities by practicing his
law profession at home. It would appear at least plausible that a
check could have been made as to the existence of such a guerrilla
unit, Hecords of GAD reveal that this "guerrilla unit" never even

applied for recognition.

3. From August 1943 to 8 July 1945 he served with Folsom's
Guerrillas, another phoney outfit whose recognition was revoked by
GAD, Even the C0, Isidoro Aberin, indicates that the scope of
claimant's guerrilla activity was to advise, contribute food,
money, information and help American internees. This service,
neither full-time nor active hardly merits pay in the rank of
captain from August 1943 to July 1945. Under existing policiss at
the time of the adjudication, 8 December 19L47, service might have
been credited from August 1943 to July 1945, but a strict adherence
to policy and close scrutiny of the gvidence should have resulted
in a no casualty status.

L. Under ekisting policy of the Adjudication Section, no credit
for entitlement to pay would be granted for his guerrilla service
gince neither organizations are recognized guerrilla units,

5, Although service might be credited for five days (18 Dec U1
to 23 Dec L41) veterans' benefits should be denied inasmuch as claimant
has fraudulently accepted arrears in pay based on misrepresentation of
facts (Par 2).

CEHTIFIED TRUE CCPYs /e/ Allan W. Mitchell
/{ﬁ GP Pree— /t/ ALLAN #. MITCHELL
M - Captain, CAC
DONALD R. GHEEN Chief, Adjudication Branch
Investigator
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MEXIO FOR RECORD

AGRD=-201 1951

T e e — T e A R W EEram T e g T e

l. In the month of lay 1950, Deceased Section, Vets., Branch in this
Hgs. initiated a Field Investigation pertaining to the case of a subject
individual by the name of CAIJALES, Luciano D.

2. The request for this Field Investigation was based on evidence which
it was determined that the subject had no legitimate guerrilla service., 4is a
result of this Field Investigzation, Field Investigator reported that during
the course of the field iﬁvestlgatlun, information developed that indicated
the subject was not reported killed in action during the battle as stated by
the widow in her claim Form 48. MNo record of any "line of duty” status on the
subject's death could be found, As a result of the findings of Field Investi-
gator, it wes determined by this Branch that there could be other cases of
attempts to make fraudulent cleims egainst the U.S. Government for alleged
guerrills service, even though the subject lndl?ldual might be carried on the
Casualty Roster of a racngulzed unit,

3¢ Iin October 1950, it was determined that Field Investigations should
be made on:

CASTILLO, Jose P. = FEC - g Wew) | /
MARLYA, Agepito Z.
LT, Juan V.,

G.RCI.., Honorato
CERV.NTES, inieno 1. 7V =
C.STRO, Jr., -lfredo C. 4

53 ga¥ IV PR U i ey

Thess nemes were picked from the Casualty Roster of the Hunters ROTC Grla,
with resident addresses in .timonan, Quezon, as it had been determined that
there were names fraudulently placed on this roster and that the subject in-
dividuals whose nemes were fraudulently placed on this roster were from the
barrio of .timenan, During the course of the Field Investigstion, informa-
tion developed indiceted that attempts to defraud the U. S. Government; and
that the subject individuals did not have any guerrilla service as alleged
in the Casuslty roster during the years 1943, 1944 and 1945, Each of these
cases has its oum individusl personal history, with the one inditement in
common and that wes, that a certain alleged Capt. Victor S, Catarrojs had
knowledge of the irrepgularities pertaining to the particular unit of which
residents of the town of JAtimonan were allegedly members.

DECLASSIFIED 1
1 Authority NMD"? ':‘:90




(Cont'd)

4, In the particular case of CERVAIITES, Aniano ii,, he (Investipator)
states in part: "Capt. Catarroja made a certificate with statements that
differ from various other inflormation, but stated that he could not tell
the whole truth as he had made previous affidavits and he had to keep giving
the same information, but thet confidentially the subject was never a guer-
rilla member and that he would contact lajor L. W. Green and give the full
facts on his false roster which was motivated by political men,"

5¢ In the oase of MAALIT, Juan V,, Capte. Vietor S, Catarroja states
that the subject did not have any guerrille service; that he was forced by
political motives to malte the false roster but he could not put that in
writing as he hed made previous affidevits; that he would try to come in for
a confidential interview with Maj. L. 7. Green and give a complete report on
his activities that hed defrauded the U. S. Government.

6, In the case of CASTRO, Jr, Alfredo C,, statement is made that the
claim is haendled by Cept. Victor S. Caterroja and Atty. Vicente Manile, as
were all other false claims in the Atimonsn area.

7. In the claim of GARCIA, Honorato, that the clamimant in this case
had a contract with Capt. Catarroja and Atty, Vicente lHanila calling a
50-50 split on any and all proceeds derived from this false claim.

8e OUn 26 Jan 1951 Capt. Victor S, Catarroja visited this office for an
interview with Maj., L. 7. Green. Capt. Catarroja was asked if the members
of the Special Unit were from Atimonan or were there members from other
torms. Then he stated that this unit was made up of members from Pelogo,
Unisan, Pagpalipo, Padre Burgos, and Atimonan,

9, The subject individual, Capt, Victor S. Catarroja was showm the
Casualty roster pertaining to this particular unit and was asked to identify
those who had legitimate service and those who were placed on the roster
illegitimately. This he did for the benefit of those concerned.

10, The Form 23 in the 201 file of Capt. Victor S, Catarroja indicates
that his wife's name is Belen Vila end she resides &t Atimonan, Tayabas
(Quezon). This would suggest that Vietor 8. Catarroja had more then a
passing interest in placing residents of this barrio illegaly on the roster
of this alleged special unit.

11, On 5 Jan 1951, the following were among the lists of questions asked
and questions ansirered by Capt. Viector S. Catarroja:

"low long were you a resident of Atimonant"

DECLASSIFIED
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(Conttad)

ingwer: "In October 1944, I first storted operating in itimonan and in the
barrios of San .ndres, Bonduk, Molinao, Ilaya until May 1945, I went back
to Jtimonan in May, June and July 1946 when I helped organized the Home Guard
for Peace and Order purposes," Extract of Form 23 executed by Capte. Victor
S, Catarroja states, "that he was married on 9 Jun 42 at ‘timonan, Tayebas,
His wife's name is Belen Vile end she resides at .timonan, Tayabas."

He was asked: "ire you willing to go over this roster and lcol
over the names of those people who are on the roster and who did net, in
foct, perform services as members of your unit®" .[mswer - "Yes, sir,"

Question: "I now give you this extract of roster of persons whose
home addresses is in the areea in which your unit operated, this is marked
Exh, .ie 'Till you please indicate on the right hand side margin by writing
"IO" opposite the names, the persons who did not perform any valid guerrilla

service with your unit?" .‘nswer - "I will and I am willing to have this
attached to this statement as Exh. "

(Wame n? roster, alluded to in above paragraph, with notations made as
stated

2GUILLR, Porfirio - = = Wot dead ¥

The rest of the following names are those who appear on the Casualty
Roster and have no wvalid guerrilla service.

AMBAS, Emilio *
C.LSTILIQ, Jose
CERVIHTES, Jniano
COLANTES, Marieno.v
ESCRITOR, ALproniano
G.RCI.A, Honorato
G.RIN, Gualberto
HUT.LI., Diege
IMPERI.L, Gangerico
MLGLTE, Juan
ILKLYON, lLgapito
P.RCO, .indres /

CoNLLES, Lucieno ¥ 'u,f - &/ T fr"i = ¢ *-‘,fl ‘;f

‘P vudd - 2 Gn 1)
Of these names the following have had Field Investigation made on ‘l:}gva:;nJ

and found to be negative by this Headquarters.

A h-ﬁ"

CLSTILLO, Jose P,
MEAY N, Agapito 2.
MLLIW, Juan. V,
GLRCI:, Honerato
CERV.NTES, .niano M,
C.8TRO, Jr, Alfredo C,

DEC LASSIFI?
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(Cont'd)

The 201 files which have been withdrawm from the Records Branch and
who are listed on the Casualty Roster in this Headquarters.

VILLLROS.., Eulogio

OLIVEROS, Luis e Y o L - & g g
B.SCO, Gregorio - Medeca 7 758 I

DI.A, Marcial . e

LGUIL:R, Vicentes ~ TE& ~ & ¢77

G.RIN, Gualberto L.

GLOR, Felix
EEGRITDR, .:;P'rﬂniﬂnﬂ

Of the 8 names 2 are identified as not having any legitimate guerrilla
gservice by Capt, Catarroja. Five of those individuals who have Field Inves-
tigation were identified as not having any service by Capt. Victor S, Catar-
rojd.

12, It is recormended that those 201 files pertaining to subject in-
dividuals, listed on this Casualty roster of the special unit and which
contain any affidavits and/or any memorandum with reference to or initiated
by Capt. Victor S. Catarroja have a redetermination made.

13, Also that where a "Request for Army Information" (V.. 3101) has not

been received, o copy of this Memo for Record be placed in the 201 file for
reference,

J. E ] -I-'EDDII-E'I, D.i.‘.lc
Claims Examiner
J'LPPRDFEB H

OTT0 STANHISER
Gapt GO
0IC, DS5, Vets Br
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Vigen, May 21, 1947

The Veterensg!? Edministratiqnl
605 F. Torres St, Hanila .

'Eentlémﬁn:--

' Information has it thet Mrs. Florentina Venus Rivade, widow of .my late
brother Silvestre Rivada, an Inspector of Norlutren (Bengui-Aparrinvline) at
the out break of the war, and who had recently been automatically inducted into.
the militsry service of the United States Army has filed her claim for pension
and insurance of the decessed Silvestre Rivade. If this information ie true,
1. have the honor to request that the claim presented by the widow Florentina
Venue Riveda should be carefully investigated and considered from all sngle of
right and reason -~ taking into account the following gtatement of facte:

1. The decemsed Silvestre Riveda had never been in the military
service of the United States Army nor in any militsry operation sinc
the cut break of the war until the date of hic demth. ok P
2. The deceased Silvestre Rivada died on September <y 1943 drawm
in Pamplona River when the small banka he embarked wes capzized by -
. bigh tjde of water im the course of his commeréial trip, and not killed
by the enemy in line of duty. |
3« That my clean conscience does not permit the inocent children
of my lete brother Silvestre Riveda to be fed of food that shall be
bought with money acquired through frauwd. The father of these children
was !n'hﬁnaﬂt h&n = never committed any fraud in his 1ifé time. For
Justice seke, these children of Sllvestre Riveda, the flesh of hie flesh,
the bone of his bene, must inherit from him his honesty and uprightnecs
unstained by any dirt to dim his good name, unquertionable conduct and
nhl:antar instead of an 11l-gotten wealth gecured through false state-
mente. nft ;
- 4e Belng the eldest brother of Silvestre Rivada whe meintained
and supported him and gave him hie education from hie childhood until
he got merried, I shell never consent that the name of the decenced
Silvestre Rivade whosé sould is now resting in peace be made instrumental
i;r committing fraud against the Government of the United States of Ane-
Ch. : r ]
5+ Knowing the fact that Silvestre Rivada wae not killed by the
enemy in line of duty for which hig family would entitle them to eny
benefit, I file this letter in due time to save the claiment from
further trouble and to safe-guard the intereste of the United States
Government, The witnesses Clemente Laro and Matec Jaremillo who
extended an affidevit testifying that the deceased wes killed by
Japanese soldiers whould be exempted from any criminal tﬁnpgngibilitr

as they do not perfectly understand the enplish 1
statement was written. : glish language in which their

Very respectfully,

W. i Authority A D,f ?LJP |
lst Lt., Inf l |




iy s

i

JW"RV m:mj mm “ij
Cidef Clerk Suporvisor, VA Unit 1B 19 Nov 53
Ree Pere Roc Sec Rec Yers flec Sec

1, On 19 s 51 a Momorandum was initinted and mpproved by Capt. Otto Ctanhiger
which indicated that there were goveral fraudilent clains presented from ¢laimants
1living in Amongst nine (9) individuale appeared the name of Filemon Ae

2, One Manuel C. Alejandro stated in a certificate dated 29 Aprdl 1951, that
he wae & forsor munber of Straushnts Fileimsrican Irregular Troops, David's Command,
and that be Joined the organization 1 Oct A2, that he was a lst Lioutenant and his
Gomndi.nn Officer wan Cols Ju.ltin:!.mu Ce ﬂ-ﬂMj tnown as Col, Davide Ho states
in thls certificate that he did not imow Fllemon A, Comneta, although he did remenbep
an of flcer with the first name of Filemon,

9, A Momo For Hecord dated 19 Jun 51, indieates that although the namo of
Filemon A, Cormeta appears on two(2) vosters it has been determined that subject did
not perform any valid Guersilla service, however it will have to be adultted that
there in no evidence in 0L File vhich can conelusively prove tiat gubjeot individual
did not have valid service,

unritten
Le Tho/Mstory of Straughn's Cuerrilla Unit, Estrella's Cuorrilla Unit and
liasedng's Ouerrilla Unit did indicate that there was nothing tut passive guerrilla
activity in the location that these units allogedly cporateds

5, The Fiald Investigation eonducted by Loon Patlach ruet be discounted in view
of known habite of this Fleld Inwvestipator, ﬂnmrurnmdmmlﬂ;ﬁ.
intﬁutdhrrrmkt.WuthMde-mmminmm of
the sub oot individual, however it is bolieved that the unwritten ovidence pertaining
to the nine(9) sublect individuals Moted on Mesorandun dated 19 Jun 51, preclules
grwﬁ.ncnrwmmtathmth

6s It 1s determined timt the aubiect individual died as a result of zonificae
tion and not Anti-Japanese activitlocs.

Yeddle

| DECLASSIFIED /
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EAWIT, CAVIIE

On 24, May 50 the case of (Jimenesz) Fructuoso Macagaling was sent for

Field Investigation to obkain:
(a) Proof of guerrilla service
(b) Proof and circumstances surrounding death of subject
(e) Proof of Parentage of subject.

During the course of Field Investigation, information developed indi-
cated that subject never had any guerrills status nor did his step=brother
Major Liberato C. Jimenez. That the mother and father of the subject were
told in 1945 to present a elaim to the U. 5. Army as the subject had been
entered ae a guerrilla easualty, and this was the first time that the mother
of subject heard the subject was a guerrilla member. That the intent to
defraud the U. 5. Government in this claim can be blamed on Major Liberato
C. Jimenez, as he prepared the roster and all the papers in this case.

It has aleo been determined that the subject was buying and selling
scrap iron for the manufacture of "boat spikes" for sale to the Japanese

Navy during the later part of 1943 and early 1944.
As a result of the sbove findings, the following individuals who are

earried in the Casualty Roster of "D" Co, 1st Bn, 10th Regt, FACGF whose
Commanding Officer was L. C., Jimenez natives of Kawit, Cavite were taken
from the Records Branch and sent to Fileld Investigation on 27 Sep 50.

HANDOG, Fortunato L.

SANTIAGO, Alberte

RIFTA, Dominador P,

RIETA, Delfin V.

RAMIREZ, Andres P,

The above named individuals were found to have performed mo wvalid
guerrilla service and their names were frudulently inserted in the Casualty

Roster.

Above ecases were adjudicated Wegative on 23 Apr 51.
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by Handaé, Fortunato L. o' ey
ac Santisgo, Alberto R. :
Rieta, Dominador F.
Rieta, Delfin V.
hamirez, Andres
Fagegeling, Fruciix

-, T T . L e = O = e

Cglamba, Lagung (Marking's Fileim.Trps)
Zorilla, Marcelo F.

Dajes, larcelo C,
Arguelles, Filemon
Garride, Ciriaco
Fortilleno, Domasinc

,_-
E

Maiayiay, Leguna (Straughn (David's Comnand

Solisa, Pelix - fu Bemo g 19 U

J8la, Jala. Rizal (FAIT David's Cormend)

Helleza : Hilaricn

Lezbre, "icente

Carungay, Eulocgio
Gellido, MKodesto

Mirando, Benito 2
Bellido, Felicisimo f. G~
Vidallo, Miguel '

- omm O @R @ B @ o - O ww  a E

Kawit, Cavite (FACGF)

- Jimenez, Liberato C.

- . . . - e e Ew e o

d0th Inf. (Cavite)

~’ﬁm1n, Luciano D.ou¥” ¥
vEscritor, Aproniano sut- &
Vidlor, Felix -outf-d Gpns)
arin, GualbertoL. gut- ¢ Hvs)
VAguilar, ‘icente P, o1~ ¥ Cfe5)
/ Diaz, Marcial -ovt UG5 >
/Basco, Gregorio e«!- ¥ g
/ Ulivercs, Luis =,= ovt 4 G 51 !
/Villarcsa, Buloglo sut- ¢ %

5|
51

- i O O e . -, O O O R s e e e

Atimonan, Quezon (Catarroja)

Cgas]
vCervantes, Aniamo M, put- 4
vCastillo, Jose fv~ gt -~ ¥ H
Alskayan, Agapito Z, ouf~ v
Masliw, Juam V. — out- ¥ %S
vGareia, Honorato owi- # Ofes)
/Castre, Jr. Alfrede G. ¢ G~ 5|

R ]

e TR D PR e o
e oot F Marued

Catarvoje, Victor S.
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SUBJECT: Report on the Baguio Ring
0 ¢ Chief, Deceased Section, Veterans Branch

1. The screening of Bagulo Ring cases was started on 16 Feb
1950, :

2¢ Initislly, this screening be with study of the Leport
of Iield Investigation of lr. Donald R. Green in the ceses of Ale-
xander Sisto, Eliseo Valdes, Federigo Noveno and Nasario Astorgs
and of the interrelated case files of the various affiants to their
alleged military service and activities.

. 3« [Iventually, this office screening was expanded to include
AGED Archive records contain the jourmals and accounts of persons
who were prominent in the Mt. Frovince resistance movement during
the invasion period. These sources were particularly useful in pro~
E:l 1E)»uukamuﬂ material and general historieal perspeciive. (See

»

4+ In the course of this study and screening,a total of 9,
201 files have been examined,

5+ +he more noticeable irregularities are set forth below:

s+ The major portion of claims for USAFFE service are based
on alleged inductions by "Capt® Isidoro SIAPHO, Since SIAPID has been
determined %o be not, himself, a USAFFE nor an authoriszed inducting
officer nor to have held even psoudoe induwction ceremonies nor to have
orga.ized or partieipated in any resistance effort whaitsoever, these
claims are obviously false andef fraudulent intent. | :

Affidavit of Edmmndo G. Navarro dated 3 Feb 1950 and
. Menuel L, Versosa dated 7 Feb 1950 attached.

In a cortifieste certified by Dionisie ln dated
19 Jen 50 at Bagulo City he states,®l was inducted into USAFFE
De¢ 41 by Caple Isidoro 3iapno who is now deceased. I do not remem-
ber the exact date but 1 it wmaa 17 Dee 41. There were about
thirty (30) men inducted at this time in one group.”

"Se nover had regular military formation and I do not
remember the names of all the enlisted men.®

"On the 27th of Dee 41 we were advised by SIAFID to hide
in the mountains beeause the Japanese were coming to Bagulo,®

) picma i o B, " Tt s S8
act . rooe twm
were to joln the forces in Batsan but none of the USAFFE in Baguio
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went to Batasn except the regular amy in Camp Allen who were able
to go down abonut the 12th of m::uhnr 41

be A small portion of the claims for UJAFFE status are based
on alleged induetions by Lt. Col. (then llsjor) Menuel L, Verzosa or
his ud;lutnnt, Capte (then 24 Lt) Edmunde G, Navarmo. Lte Yol, VERDEA'g
ow tesbimony regarding these inductions is contradictory but his finsl
affidavit, made when he knew that we had became susplecious of these
Baguio inductions, would indicate that he conducted ne inductions in
person but left such inductions to HAVARHD, a nommal procedurs, NAVARID
asserie that he did induet many persons inte the USAFFE but that these
ware all reservists and not eivilian volunteers, because he ms not -
authorized to induché any but reservists. Beth m::m and NAVARID state
that no induetions were made prior to 20 Dee 41 or after 22 Nec 41, asince
VERZDSA end NAVARIO were not, themselves, inducted umtil 20 Dee 41 and- .

they both left Bagulo MMM%W'
morning of 23 Deg 41+ The statement of Lt. Col. (then Maj) Iverette I,

Werner, who inducted VERZOSA and NAVARR) shows that the probable date

of this induction was 21 Dee 41, Since many of the slleged VERMIA oy
NAVARRD inductions are claimed for dates urlilr than 20 Dec /41 and
8til) others are those of persons whe claim to M eivilian yelune-
teers, i.t is obvious thet such elaims are false and msde with fraudulent
intent. ((Affvt attached)s (5o meh, 1 2 2))

¢ 4t least one minor-DIONISIO ALAFRIZ JR. is alleged to have
been inducted inte the USAFTE by VERIDOA and SIAID, lie 201 file shows
that be wme only 16 years old at the time of ihis aileged induction,

- Je:lnt effidevit of Dionigie Fs Alafris snd Alejo A. lom
deted 24 lov 1%‘? attached.

ds A nmber of females slso claim induction by SIAFK, Some

" of these claimed induction as medical assistents (not nurses) emd others
ns teleplone operatora, OCbviously, these claims are fraudulent, since
there wes no wonea's corps in the USATFE, Lt, Gol, darmer, in his
cortified statement, oocts further light on the alleged "services® of
the femnle tolepbone operators when he states that he had to trein Fhile
ippine Seouts to operate the telephone switchbosnds at Baguio becnuse
all the civilian waen operators had left. (. . "7L.

& 'MhMMlmtiﬂdwuluﬂttum
Wlm Lts ﬂul.: ﬂ- frny of the hited States, lttﬂ.m‘
and lrﬂduh If &'ni:ltl P, Naku attsched,

In sa affidevit deted 1 July 46 exeocuted by Gusman As
Cerino, he state, "That shortly after my induction, Cuptain Eurm asked
me nhmt the pouihﬂlty of organising a group of women to help the
Army; that in compliance with the request of Captain Siapne, I highly
Hw then Miss CHUSITA F. NAKU ss the leader of thn nbw- pro=
poaed unit.*

*That on 19 De¢ 41, upon my recommendation, the following
mh were industed by Ceptain Siapno at Kayang Street, Baguio City,
vigi
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1, CRUSITA ¥, NAKU = 4, REMEDIOS RANGS
2. PIA VERGARA 5. MARTA CABANLIG
3. AUREA R, RIGOR 6. EMERCIANA HUFANA®

€e iIn addition to their false claims for USAFFE gtatue, the
prepondence of claime alse allege service with the so=-called QGhshing
Regiment, an unrecognized unit of the Folsoms File-lmerican puerrillss.
Records of the @Gnerrilla Affairs pivision , PHILRYCOM, indicote that
this organization wes a post-liberation mit; oonceived in fraud and
nuriured by the contributions of its mmembers®. “Lts Col.® Isidore
SIAPND is listed es the executive officey of this organization on rosters
found in the vardous 20) files., Nis desth in December 1945, wmas later
than the liberation peried, so that he was alive and active when the
Cushing Regiment wes bedng formed as a post-liberstion mit, fihe botug
nature of this unit is 4ndicated by the ettached letter from the Commande
ing General, PHILRYCOM, and the synopsis of information on the reverse .
of tids letter, (See Incl #2), This, of eourse, furthes impugns the
integrity of SIAPNO and ghows that, ea a prineipal in the formetion of
a fake guerrilla unit, he hes demonstrsted his willingness to attest 1o
militery dervices not in faet performed and to confer militawy status in
return for money payments,

6+ The cases considered are listed below. For convenience in
identification, Army ranks and serial numbera assigned on procesging
are used. These ere merely an additional jdentification snd DO WOT
CONFER ANY MILITARY STATUS,

VA USAFFE GUERRILLA DATE FLACED
HAME & IDENTIFACTION Claim STATUS STATUS IN CLOSED FILE
1y SIAPNO, Isidore (Dessased) None Neg. Neg.e
Capt. Inf. 0=33569

(Ses 1ist attached)

7+ liew cases are belng woovered at intervals, even though the
gcreening effort has now being ocompleted, It im contemrlated t, o8
Such cases are discovered, apprepriate sction will be taken to review
past determinations and initiate any necemsary corrective action for
the particular ecase in question,
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CERTIFICATLE

I, EDMUNDO G. VAVARRO, _33 years old, _married, residing at Lucens,

EEEEEH_EEEEEEEE, hereby declare that I understand my richts under the

constitution and laws of the Philinpines; that I also understand that my
atatemants will be used to prove material facts in support of a claim for
veterans benefits from the United States government, and that I make these
statements voluntarily and freely:

I was inducted inteo USAFFE on 31 Auzust 1941 at Bengued, Abra, with
trainees and officers of the 11th FA fPﬁ}, by Lt. Erie F. Davis, He was
with the Philinpine Scouts then. In September 1941, I became the District
Ad jutant of the 1st [iilitary District, PA, stationed at Camp Henry T. Allen,
Bagulo.

On 20 December 1941, all of the Headquarters personnel of the 1st
Military District were induected into USAFFE by Major Everett L. Warner,
88th FA (PS). He was then Provost liarshall, Camp John Hay.

I received instructions by radio from Headquarters, Fhilippine Army,
authorizing the Distriet Commander, or the District Adjutant, to induet
reservists, and I rcmember that I was not authorized to induct any civilians
into USAFFE at that time, On the 215t and 22nd of December 1941, prior to
our evacuation of Bagulo, I inducted possibly one hundred reservists, in-
cluding officers and enlisted men. As far as I remember, there were no
inductions after 22 December 1941 because the Headquarters of the lst

Hilitary District was preparing to evacuate on the morninz of the 23rd.
* #* * # E3 * *

EXTRACT
As far as I know, Col. Manmuel T, Verzesa did no actusl inducting,

because he was busy with other matters, and he 7zave me entire authority

in induetions, I did not delegate any authority for anyone to make subse-

quent inductionz, and as far as I know, no such suthority was given by

Col. Verzosa.
a2 3 ¥ » L3 *+ *

I hereby certify that I have read all of the foregoing statements;
that they are made by me as true and correct with full knowledge of the
fact that severe penalties involving fines and imprisonment are preseribed
by Act e, 2567, Philirpine Legislature, Enacted February 3, 1916 and still
in force ond effect., (Article XV, Philippine Constitution and Art, 365
fevised FPenal Code).

/e/ Ednupdo G. Yavarro
/t/ _EDLUNDO G. NAVAKRO

Signature

iiitnessed by the undersigned on 3rd day of February, 1250 at
Lucena, Quezon Province.

/s/ _Donald R, Green
/t/ DONWAID R, GREEN
Field Investigator, U. 3. Army

EXTRACT

= -

E TRUE COFY
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Extracted from the Field Investigation on SISTO, Alexander, VALDEZ,
Eligseo, NOVEND, Federico and ASTORGA, VFasario, Investigation Branch File
nutbers are: 1885, 1826, 1227 and 18288,
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[ } ” Baguio City
o April 1, 1948

L]
TE& COMMANDING GENERAL -
PHILIPPINES RYUKYUS COMMAND, APO 707
RECQVERED FERSONNEL DIVISION,
MANDAEUYONG, RIZAL, Philippines

8 1r:

I am taking this opportunity to write this letter for the sake of coope-
ration.

I am not a claimant for any arrears in pay of USAFFE or Cuerrills, but I
am a lover of Justice. I lmow of sems legitimate claims of claiment but the y
were not properly attended, I do not know why. On the contrary, there were
false claim that are filed and ready for payment. The names of false claimant
listed herein, filed in yowr office & claim for a supposed USAFFE-Guerrilila.
They claim that they were Inducted into the USAFFE on 23 Dec.1941, at Camp H.
T. Allen, 1st Military District, Bagule City, by the late Capt. Siapno. That
I lmow the foregolng facts because I am a promenent person end old timer mer-
chant in Baguio City, long before the outbreake of the World War #2 in the
Fnilippines on 8 Dec. 1941, That they were all from far different places Towns
and Provinces and they are not even a lsborer or employees of any Transportat-—
ion or working in the Mines or merchant at Baguio, so that they can tell that
they are at Baguio all of themf on the 25 Dec.1941. How can they be all at
Baguio at the same date while some are Teachers in La Union, Fisherman, Farmer
High School Student, University Student, Bagrio Mayors the town-mate of Mamerto
Balagot, the Organizer of the said USAFFE and charged F25.00 each e nlisted men
mwdutnhcm:ﬂﬁﬂm“bw.ﬂnm agot the oganiser of the
saild USAFFE inducted by Capt. Siapno at Camp Henry T. Allem, lst MD,
City, had collected F10.00 again for his expenses in Manila in order to work
their papers for Back Pay, and charged them 50% of their back pay when they
will receive. Now Mamerto is in Manila , RFD and Capm Murphy working
the back paye of hie USAFFE men. Is this not racket system? Racket? Yes, if
there are more that Ope-hundred or more false claim of this kind, does it not
meant money to be pald to legitimate claim? It is trus the monmey do not come
from my pocket but I love $o seo Right things in the RIGHT place.

Like that of ALVARO GOMEZ of Bauang, la Unlon, a false USAFFE claimant had
recelved F1060.00 plus; John D, Fidildia, receivedd F1500.00 plus; Franeisco

Patacsil, recelved ¥1,100.00 plus, they were all false USAFFE.

. PLEASE SEE TO IT AND TAKE ACTION TO THIS MATTER.
For your guldance ,

DECLASSIFIED
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/8. Teodoro Tejano »20. Re miglo indyada+”
%4, Francisco Gatchaliany” 2l. Filomino Marila
#5. Moesls Gatchalian,” &2. Avilino Pa tacsil
6. Reynaldo Llarinas £5. Teodore Navarro
#“T. Cirlaco Abuans” “24. Marcos Dulatre
8, John D. Fidl.ldrl: 5. Rufino Andrada
¥ 9. Cirilo Soriano %26. Pablo Orpillas”
0. Policarpo ﬂrpi}h/ %27. Nicomedes Tejano+*”
+1l. Pedro Andrada . Juan Joquiana
AE. Gil Pimentil / 29, A dolfe Sotele
#15. Teodoro Gualberto ¥80. Paulo Fondalesy”
w14. Cecllio Belloy 5l. Emiliano T. Andrada
15. Alfredo Dulatre 52. Teodorico Madayag
FE, Felipe Picardals” A%, Jaime Caluza T
L-Hﬂ’“mmkwmﬁ{m&m
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COPY FURNISHED:

1-

THE COMMANDING GENERA, ,PHTLRYCOM

RS JUAN DELA CRUZ
: 4 1. MAMERTO m[{&mn} 18, Irenio Rus
4. Francisco Patacall y19, Alvaroc Gomeszd+”

#. THE JUDGE ADVOCATE GENERAL, Camp Murphy

5.

THE FINACE SPRVICE, HNDF, Cam
«. THE PRESIDENT OF THE PHILIPPINES REPURLIC

(F THIS WILL NOT BE ATTENDED THERE WILL BE ANOTHER TARDC'S ORGANTZATION)

i/
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPFIHEE; org .
LA TRINIDAD BENGUET :

I, GUZMAN A, CAHIﬁD; of legal age, married, Filipino, with =
residence and postal address at Bagulo, Philippines, after first
being duly sworn to under éath, depose and say :

1. That in December 1941, there were mass induetions at Baguio
of both Reservists and clvllians into the service of thethe UEEFFEj
PA by Captain ISIDORO SIAPNO and other military authnritles. That

I was oné of those who Jjoined and was inducted into the service of
the Army on 17 December 1941 by the late Capt.lsidoro Siapnos:

2. That shortly after my induction, Captain Siapno asked me
about the possibility of organizing a group of women to help the
Armys That in compliance with the request of Captain Siapno, I
highly recommended then Miss CRUSITA F., NAKU, as the leader of the
above proposed unit:

3. That on 19 December 1241, upon my recommendation , the
following women were inducted by Gaptﬁln Isidnrn Siapno, at Kayang

Street,Baguio City, viz:

1. CRUSITA F. NAKU 4, REMEDIOS RAMOS
2. PIA VERGARA o.MARIA CABANLIG °
5  AUREA R. RIGOR 6. EMERENCIANA HUFANA

4, That after the said induction , CRUSITA F, NAKU, was
forthwith appointed as leader of the aforemention ed group and
given the rank of MASTER SGT.

5. That I also have personal knowledge of the faet that
M/Sgt. CRUSITA F. NAKU and her aforementioned companiocons later
joined and was inducted in o organized guerrilla outfits such as
the Bato Belani -Unit and the 4th Inf. Regt.(CB) F F A G, wherein
they served until hostilities ceased in the Philippines.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this lst day
of July, 1946 in the Municipal District of La Trinidad, Benguet,
Mountzin Province,Philippines

/s/ GUZMAN A, CARIHD
/ GUZMAN A, CARIKO
Maj, -4 F F A G -Grla
Sgt. Inf. Usaffe = 490587

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this lst day of July,19546,
in the Municipal Distriect of La Trinidad, Benguet,Philippines.

/s/ LOUIS HORA
/t/ LOULE HORA

Deputy Provincial Goverior
Benguet,Philippines

True copy
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REFUBLIC OF THE PHILIFPINES )
CTTEOF BEGHTD consrvannnnn O S B

I, FEDRO CARANTES, .2nd Lieutenant, Infantry, (AP), ASN 0-41379;
relieved from active service of the Army of the Philippines on 22 2pril
1946, and presently residing in and with postal address at the City of
Baguio, Fhilippines, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with
law, FREELY LECLARL:

1. That I was a Reserve Officer of the Fhilippine Army with the
rank of 2nd Lieutenant, in December, 1941, and prior thereto;

2. That in respense to a poster posted in conspicuous places in
the City of Baguio sometime in December, 1941, following the outbreak
of the hostilities, I reported at Hg, 1lst Hilitary District, Camp Henry
T. fllen, Bapuio, and was inducted into the service of the USAFFE at the
said place on 22 December 1941 by Lisutenant Edmundo Nawvarro, then Adj-
utant of the Hg, lst Military Distriet;

3. That I returned to full military control and was duly processed
on 12 July 1945, at Camp Svencer, Luna, La Union, with the rank of 2nd
Lleutenant and given ASH 0-41379;

4L+ That I rembmber the fact that there were several mass inductions
in Baguio of both eivilians and reservists into the mervice of the USAFFE,
following the cutbreak of the war, among them werej :

1., Juan Balagot N 20, ©Serafin Villaralvo

2. Benito Absalon ¥ 21, Virgilio Boado ™

3. Frank Krueger, Jr.#"// 22, Atanacio Abuan ™Me F -8 n frie-
4o Alberto Arnobit b::/” 23. Rodrigo Haris M. ",

5. Clodualdo Balagot 24+ Benjamin Resario

6. Fulalio Ponce - M. Fl. 25, Solomon Fsrn&n.d},d _

7. Bonifacio Marayag, 26, Martin Rindon / -
8. Teofilo Alarcio pys'" 27. Hariano Puzon /
9. Juan Gualberto [™:." " 28, Francisco Pataecsil

10, Alfredo Cortesyi, /. 29, Ciriaco Abuan C

1ll. Teodoro M‘V{S / 30. Alfredo Dauz ™. 1}

12. Juan Dumo 31, John D, Fideldia
13, Reginaldo LadagAy, 1| 32, Emiliano inﬂradj/‘/
14. Homeo Pugon 33. Alfredo Young
15, Leon Fider M I / 34. Pio Ayson N,
16, Teodorico Vadayag 35. TFaustino Aquisay & &4
17. Tomas Lachica 4+ !%. 36. Emilianoc Urbano M«%\.
18, Ranullo Vergara M A 37. Cecilio Bello < :F
19, Edilbertoc lVendoga L .= 38. Eduardo Patacsil ff

5, That the above named-persons were inducted into the USAFFE by
the late Captain Isidoro Siapno on or abomt 23 December 1941, at Camp
Henry T. fllen, Baguio, Philippines;

6. That I know the above facts because I was one who brought
them to Camp Henry T. Allen on the same day with agsistance of

Frank Krueger, Jr., lamerto Balagot, Roman Ayson, ®nd Juan Balagot,
and I had personally witnessed the induetion of the aforementioned per-

song along with others whose names I cannot now recall, at the afore-
said date and place;

7. That I also have personal knowledge of the faet that the said
soldlers were glven arms and ammunitions immediately after induetion
and were assigned in different places, namely; to guard the main en-
trance highway to the City of Bagulo, to guard agalnst possible enemy-
parairoop invasion, to guard government and private properties, and
to help maintain peace and order in the/City of Baguic and its suburbs;

be.ﬂi - Jaceb -~ (_':ﬁrn LIS e | *
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8., That shortly before the arrival of the Japanese Forces in
this area, it was decided by authorities of the lat Milltary Dis-
trict, PA, fo Abandon the defense of the City of Baguio fto save it
from destruction, in view of which the above soldiers along with others
were orderad to disband and join the nearest unit of USAFFE.

9, That following the disbandment, we attempted to reach elements
of the 43rd Infantry (FS) USAFFE which was then at Bontoc, Mountain
Province, but were unable to do so due to the fact that all bridges
leading thereto were already blasted; nevertheless, some of the boys
were able to join the said 43rd Infantry‘EFEJUSEFFE in Hountain Trail,
Mt., Province, while others immediately joined the underground resis-

tance movement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 1ith day of
August, 1947, in the City of Baguioc, FPhilippines.

/a/ Pedro Carantes
/t/ PEDRO CARANTES
2nd Lt Inf 0-41379

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 14th day cof August, 1947,
in the City of Baguio, Fhilippines, the affiant exhibiting his Residence
Certificate No., A-1735931, issued at Baguio on February 20, 1947.

/a/ Santiage C. Gregoric
/t/ SBANTIAGOD C. GREGORID
Aggistant City Attorney
City of Baguio

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:

/s/ Vaurc E, Bravo
/t/ VAURO E. BRAVO
2nd Lt INF 0-42660
AOID RFD Sec 1"MD (4F)

A TRUE COPY:

/ar
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1. In going thru the files - as of today -~ it will be noted that,
those who have, affidavits supposedly supporting their alleged induction
into the lst MD,’ USAFFE, at Baguio, the following have IUT made affi-
davits for ihaduction., Why?

Fy ABERIN, Tsidoro
ASUNCION, Tomas
BRA‘H], Mauroc E.
SIAPNDO, Isidoro
NAVARRO, Fdmundo G.

| 2. The following have affidavits of alleged induetion by Isidoro
Eiﬂlﬂﬂl : ;

~=AMISTAD, Bale *CACAYAN, Samuel
—BATAGOT, Mamerto “’

—BALAJADIA, Jose R. £KRU Frederiock -
~BENITO, Jose Pe == KIWA lteo -
— CALICA, Macario » PADILIA, Teofilo M,
mej Cuzman A. "‘PM, l-p:‘llimﬂ.ﬂ e
* CENZON, Filibster -RILIO, Mammel V,
DI CANG>~DIOANG, Agapito *SICAT, Clemente M.
« FUERTES, Incencio ~SABINO, Wicanor V.,

~-FANGONIL, Sinforeso - <TAWAS, Pedro

x FONTANILLA, Juan L. <TAWAS, Juan

+GUIREY, Lorengzo . *ZAMBRANO, Leon O,
— YMSON, Demingo

3. BISCOCHO, Felomeno states he was inducted by Lt. Col. Mamuel
Verzosa. :

4e Mauro £, Bravo has ONLY affixed his signature to "True Coples”
and "Subscribed and Sworn" statements. 1

5, Manuel L., Versosa has only two affidavits in his file.

6. Tomas F. Asuncion has only affidavits pertaining to payment of
salaries of alleged officers of the 1lst MD., (USAFFE).

7. In the report of the "Field Investigation®™ by lonald R, Creen,
the names of ~

(a) 815870, Alexander - induated by Isidore Siapno, Affiants;

GUIREY, Lorenso B,
EKRUEGFR, Joseph G.
PALAROAN, Alberto P.

(b) VALDEZ, Eliseo O, - inducted by Isidoro Siapno. Affiants:

RILLO, Manuel V,
TAWAS, Pedro E,
REYES, Fmilie L.

KRUEGER, Frank -
SSIFIED :
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(¢) MHOVENO, Federieco P, -~ industed by Isidore Siammo. Affiamts:

MAYO, Teribio S.
CASTHO, Benito G.
ORDEN, Pauline C,
CAPANTES, Pedro

It will be noted that the names of
m; m1 'IT-
“I-'IU', Tbrihi.ﬂ Bi
CASTRD, Benito G.

appear for the first time as affiants for alleged induction at Baguio in
lst MD,(USAFFE),

- s eE ek W

It would appear that the whole unit of the 1st MD USAFFE of Baguio,

Et. Prov, was NOT an operating unit and that the unit and any alleged
member of the unit should not be recognized.

/ar
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GARANTES, Pedro

CASTRO, Benito G.
m, Jm ...
DUKA, Pxequiel |
!D!TIIILLI. Juan L,

GUIREY, I-man B.
IIII]IUEH, ;ﬂ.ﬂ Ge

MANZANO, Clare L.

MARN, Bae
ORDEN, Paulino C,
PALAROAN, Alberto

PALMA, Domingo |
RESURRECCION, Federico V.

REYES, Failio L.
RILLORTA, Gabriel

SABIND, Nicanor V.
I' n

"IIEH' hhl: [+ 9
'H.I-DH, Bernardo 0,

CALICA, Macario

. TAWAS, Pedro

KRUEGER, Joseph G.
KRUEGER, Fyederiek
mﬂ, ﬂlllﬂlh ‘-i
mr Im ﬂ-

v FUERTES, Incencio

BALAGOT, Mamerto
CENZON, Filibster
DICANG, Agapito
TARAS, Juan

'PADILLA, Teofilo M,

GUIREY, Leorenzo
HII.Iﬂ, Manuel V.
TAWAS, Pedro
SABINO, Nicanor V,

. IREEEE, Joseph G,

TAWAS, Pedro
KRUEGER, Frederick
ZAMBRAND, Loen 0.
TAWAS, Juan (deceased)
!'IIM'HE, Inoeencio
mm’ m li
CENZON, Filibster S,
YMSON, Domingo
RILLO, Manuel V.
SICAT, Clemente
TAWAS, Pedro
BENITO, Jose Pe
TAWAS, Pedro
nmm Jose Pe
llIBTlD, Balao
gg;'!, Clemente

N, Domingo
KINANG, Balteo
CALICA, Macario
BALAJADIA, Jose R,
m. ll“'.l ?u
FANGONIL, Sinforoso L.
Rm. IIEII '-Il
FANGONIL, 8inforoso L,
mn' Jose R.
TAWAS, Pedro
RILLO, Mamuel V,
SICAT, Clemente M,
TAWAS, Pedro
BENITO, Jose Pe alias
FLORES, Roberto

|
1

Bm, I:idm
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AFFIANIS
VALDEZ, Bernardo 0,
VlLEIEE, Fructuoso O,

n

Note:
VERZOSA, lln:m-l Le
n

((SAFFE)

FOR INDUCTED BY
GACAYAN, Semuel SIAPW, Isidoro
YMSON, Domingo ey » Sl
AMISTAD, Baloa " o

FONTANILIA, Jusn L, MANUEL L. VERZOSA
Pm’ .l;ﬁlimrin M, !
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. HEADQUARTERS ARMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
Camr MurrHY, QuUueEzon CITy

(AGC3) May 1k, 1948

Mrs Candida ¥, Floresca
10 Aurora Hill
Baguio City

1Tadam;

It appears on record that lst Sergeant Facundo Floresca ASY
Unknown, was a reservist called to active duty on December 18,
19/1 at Headquarters, lst Military Distriet, Baguio City and was
inducted into the USAFFE by Captain Isidro Siapno on the same day.
On or about December 26, 1941, the members of the lst Military
District were ordered to proceed to Bataan, However, subject en-
listed man was directed by Captain Siapno to stay at Baguio to do
intelligence work under the command of Lieutenant Pedro Tawas, It
appears on record further that subject enlisted man participated
in the encounter with the Japanese where he was captured on
‘'arch 24, 1942 by the Japanese and executed on June L, 1942 at

Fort Santiggo.

It has been held, as this Headquarters hereby holds, that the
failure of lst Sergeant Facundo Floressa to reach the battle fronts
of Bataan were not due to his omn fault or negligence, but on ac. '
count of circumstances of war which is hereby declared Justifpable,

In view hereof, therefore, this Headguarters hereby holds that
the deceased, lst Sergeant Facundo Floresce, be declared missing in
action from December 27, 1941 up to the time of his death June J,

1912, o
Regpectfully yours,
FOR THE CHIECF OF STAFT;

i
Lt-0ol,, 38 N\ -
Asst The Adjutent Genepa]
COPY furnisheds | ety B

Director, D, PHILRYCOM, APO 707
c, FS, HNDF |
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MEI0 FOR RECORD

AGRD-201 1951
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l, In the month of llay 1950, Deceased Section, Vets., Branch in this
Hgs. initiated a Field Investigation pertaining to the case of a subject
individual by the name of CAIJALES, Luciano D,

2o The request for this Field Investigation was besed on evidence which
it was determined that the gubject had no legitimate guerrilla service, 4&s a
result of this Field Investization, Field Investigator reported that during
the course of the field investigation, information developed that indicated
the subject was not reported killed in action during the battle as stated by
the widow in her claim Form 48. No record of any "line of duty" status on the
subject's death could be found. As a result of the findings of Field Investi-
getor, it was determined by this Branch that there could be other cases of
attempts to make fraudulent claims against the U,S. Government for alleged
guerrills service, even though the subject individual might be carried on the
Casuelty Roster of a recognized unit,

3« In October 1950, it'was determined that Field Investigations should
be made on:

ASTILLO, Jase P.
VMARLAYAN, lLgepito 2.

1L LIW, Juan V,

G.RCI.., Honorato
CERV.NTES, .iniano il.
C..8TRO, Jre, «ilfredo C,.

These names were picked from the Casualty Roster of the Hunters ROTC Grla,
with resident addresses in .timonan, Quezon, as it had been determined that
there were nemes fraudulently placed on this roster asnd that the subject in-
dividuals whose nemes were froudulently placed on this roster were from the
barrioc of ..timenan. During the course of the Field Investigetion, informe-
tion developed indiceted that attempts to defraud the U. S. Government; and
that the subject individuals did not have any guerrilla service as alleged
in the Casualty roster during the years 1943, 1944 and 1945, Each of thsse
cases has its ovm individusl personal history, with the one inditement in
cormon and that was, that a certain alleged Capt, Victor S, Catarrojs had
knowledge of the irregularities perteining to the particular unit of which
residents of the tovm of JAtimonan were sllegedly members,

DECLASSIFIED
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4, In the particular case of CERVANTES, Aniano If,, he (Investigator)
stetes in part: "Capt. Catarroje made a certificate with statements that
differ from various other informstion, but stated that he could not tell
the whole truth as he had made previous affidavits and he had to keep giving
the same informetion, but thet confidentially the subject wes never a guer-
rilla member and that he would contact !Major L, W, Green and gzive the full
facts on his false roster which was motivated by politicel men."

5 In the case of MAALIT, Juan V., Capte. Victor 5, Catarroja states
that the subject did not have esny guerrille service; that he was forced by
political motives to malte the false roster but he could not put that in
writing as he had made previous affidevits; that he would try to come in for
a confidential interview with Maj. L. 7. Green and give a complete report on
his activities that hed defrauded the U. S. Government.

6. In the case of CASTRO, Jr. Alfredo C., statement is made that the
claim is handled by Cept. Victor ©. Caterroja and Atty. Vigente Manile, as
were all other false claims in the Atimonan ares,

7. In the elaim of GARCIA, Honorato, that the cleiment in this case
had o contract with Capt., Cetarroja and Atty. Vicente lanilsa calling a
50-50 split on any and all proceeds derived from this false claim.

8. On 26 Jan 1951 Capt. Victor S, Catarroja visited this office for an
interview with Maj, L. /. Green. Capt. Catarroje was asked if the members
of the Special Unit were from Atimonan or were there members from other
torms., Then he stated that this unit was made up of members from Pelogo,
Unisen, Pagpalipo, Padre Burgos, and satimonan,

9, The subject individual, Capt. Victor S. Catarroja was shoim the
Casualty roster pertaining to this particular unit and was asked To ldentiry
those who had legitimate serviece and those tho were placed on the roster
illegitimately. This he did for the benefit of those concermed.

10, The Form 23 in the 201 file of Capt. Victor S, Catarroja indicates
that his wife's neme is Belen Vila and she resides at Atimonan, Tayabas
(Quezon). This would suggest that Victor S. Catarroja had more then e
passing interest in placing residents of this barrio illegaly on the roster
of this alleged special unit,

11, On 5 Jan 1951, the following were among the lists of questions asked

and questions ansrered by Capt. Victor 5. Catarroja:

"How long were you a resident of Atimonan?"

s B = DECLASSIFI
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‘ngwer: "In October 1944, I first sterted operating in itimonan and in the
barrios of San .Andres, Bonduk, Meclineso, Ilaya until May 1945, I went back

to Stimonan in May, June and July 1946 when I helped organized the Home Guard
for Peace and Order purposes," Extract of Form 23 executed by Capte Victor
S, Catarrojn states, "that he was married on 9 Jun 42 at .itimonan, Tayabas.
Hig wife's name is Belen Vile end she resides at .timonan, Tayabas,"

He was asked: ".re you willing to go over this roster and look
over the nemes of those people who are on the rester and who did net, 1n
fact, perform services as members of your wnitt" Jmaswer - "Yes, sir."

Question: "I now give you this extract of roster of persons whose

home nddresses is in the area in which your unit operated, this is marked
Exh, &ie '7ill you please indicate on the right hand side margin by writing
"MIO" opposite the names, the persons who did not perform any valid guerrilla
service with your unit?" .nswer - "I will and I am willing to have this
attached to this statement as Exh. &i."

(Mame on roster, alluded to in above paragraph, with notations made as
stated)

AGUIL.R, Porfirio - - = Not dead

The rest of the following names are those who appear on the Casualty
Roster and have no valid guerrilla service.

AMBAS, Emilio
CALSTILIOC, Jose
CERV/NTES, Anianc
COL.NTES, Mariano
ESCRITOR, Apronieano
G.\RCIL), Honorato
G.LRIN, Guelberto
HUT.LI., Diege
IMPERI.L, Gongerico
ILLIT, Juan
MKLYON, JLgapito
P.RCO, .ndres
C.N.LES, Luciano

0f these names the following have had Field Investigation made on them
and found to be negative by this Headquarters,

C.STILLOD, Jose P.
KLY N, Agapito Z.
I'EL';.L'J,LIW, Juan V.
G..RCI.., Honerato
CERV.NTES, iniano M,
CASTRO, Jr, :lfredo C,

ECLAS SIF
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The 201 files which have been withdrawn from the Records Branch and
who are listed on the Casualty Roster in this Headquarters.

VILL.AROS.., Eulogio
OLIVEROS, Luis
B..5C0, Gregorio
DI'Z, Marcial
~GUIL.R, Vicente
G.RIN, Gualberto L.
GLOR, Felix
ESCRITOR, .\proniane

Of the 8 nomes 2 are identified as not having any legitimate guerrilla
service by Capt. Catarroja. Five of those individuals who have Field Inves-
tigation were identified as not having any service by Capt. Victor Se Catar-
roja.

12, It is recormended that those 201 files pertaining to subject in-
dividuals, listed on this Casualty roster of the special unit and which
contain any affidavits and/or any memorandum with reference to or initiated
by Capt. Victor S, Catarrojs have a redetermination made.

13. Also that where a "Request for Army Information" (V. 3101) has not

been received, n copy of this Memo for Record be placed in the 201 file for
reference.,

Jeo. E« TIEDDLE, D:C
Claims Examiner
LPPROVED:

OTTO STANHISER
Capt 4GC
0IC, DS, Vets Br
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/ BUBJECT: Report on the Baguio Ring
© ¢ Chief, peceased Cection, Veterans Branch

* 1, The soreening of Bagulo Ning ceses was started on 16 Feb
1950,

2s Ind s this screening began with study of the feport
of leld Investige of Lr. Donald H, Green in the casen of ile-
xender -isto, [liseo Valdem, Federico Noveno and Naserio Astorga
and- of the interrelated csse files of the various affiants to their
alleged militery service and activities,

3¢ Iventually, this offide screening was expanded to include
AGAD Archive records oontaining the joummals and accounts of persons
who were prominent in the Mb. irovinece resistance movement dwring
the invesion period. These sourees were particularly useful in pro-
mﬁnmm material and general historieal perspeciive. (glw
L .

4s In the eourse of this study and sereening,a total of o/
201 filea have boen exemined. . |

5s ‘be wore noticestle irregularities ape set forth belows

8+ The major portion of claims for USAFTE service aré based

on alleged industions by "Capt® Isidoro SIAPNO,. Since has been
Jeternlned to be _ s & USAFFE nor an authoriszed ueting

officer nor to have Hn;puub indwdion ceremonies nor to have

orga .ized or partieipa any resistance effort whatscever, these
claima are 6 bylously false andof freudulemt, fntents . o ).
A " nuntzu,ﬁunuﬁ:mm&uu
lanuel L, Veraosa dsted 7 Feb 1950 attached, ' od b2

- in a te certified by D: eyag dated

19;1“#01‘5“&' umu-,-:mm %

-muﬂh&pt.hmulmhurm. I do not remem-
was 17 Dee 41,

ber the exsct date but I be There were about
thirty (30) men at this in one group.*

"Le nevexr had vegular ailitary formation and I do not
remember the names of all the enlisted men.”

. "On the 27th of Dee 41 we were advised by & Ihhin"'
mmm?whmmmhm

*Dwi:&tﬁlmhﬁmwmm
lmm w- m
were to join the forees in Hatasn but none

i
s
:
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went to Bataan except the regular amy in Gamp Allen wmo were aoie
%o go down about the 12th of December 4l.

be A small portion of the claims for USAFFE status a>e based
on alleged inductions by Lt. Cols (them Major) Menuel L., Verzosa ox
his adjutant, Cept. (them 2d Lt) Edmundo G, Navarzo. Lt. “ol. VERZOSA's
own teatimony regarding these inductions is eontradictory but his final
affidavit, nade when he imew that we had became suspicious of these
Bagulo Inductions, would indicate that he conducted no inductiona ia
person but left such inductions to NAVARRD, a normal procedure., NAVARRD
asserts that he did induet many persons into the USAFFE but that these
vere all reservists and not eivilian volunteers, because he was not
authorized to induet any but reservists. Both VERZDSA and NAVARED state
that no inductions were made prior to 20 Dee 41 or after 22 Deg 41, since
VERIOSA and NAVARID were not, themselves, indueted until 20 Deg Al end
they both left Baguio along
morning of 23 Dee¢ 41s The statemeént of Lt. o (then Maj) Everette I,
sarner, who induoted VERZSA and NAVARR) shows thet the probable date
Of Ghis Induction was 21 Dee 41, Since many of the alleged VERZSA or
HAVARID induetions are claimed for dates earlier than 20 Dec 41 end
8till others are those of persons wo claim to bhave been eivilian volun=
teers, it is obvious that such claims are false and made with freudulent
intent. (Affvi .mﬁhﬂ)' (See Exh. 1 & 2)

Gs A% least one minor-DIONISIO ALAFRIZ JR, is alleged %o have
been inducted into the USAFFE by VERIOSA and SIAPNO, FHis 201 file shows
that he wep only 16 years old at the time of this slleged induction.

Joint affidavit of Dionisio F. Alafris and Alejo A, Hoam
dated 24 Nov 1947 attached. !

de A number of females also ¢laim induction by SIAFND,. Some

of these claimed induction as medical assistants (not nurses) and others
as teleplone operators. Obviously, these claims are frawduient, sinoce
there was no women's corps in the USAFFE, Li, Col. Warmer, in his
n:tiﬂ.ld statement, casts fu't:l-l.::hi on the lﬂlﬂiilmiﬂl' ;t

the female telephone operators states that he to train Phil-
:ﬁm.sm 8 to operato the telephone switchboards at Baguio beeause

the olvilian women operators hsd left. (' = .

Extract taken from a certified Report of Iverett Lauman
Warner, Lt. Mi' H; Army of the United Htliﬂ, .tﬂ.m § : J
and affidavit of Crusita P, Naku attached.

In an affidavit dated 1 July 46 executed by Gusman A,
Carino, he state, "That shortly after my induction, Ceptain Sispno asked
me lbou:h. the guihﬂity -:1 :hm‘:un; a 'f'? of women to help the
Army; t conpliance request of Captain Siapno, I highly
recomméended then Miss CRUSITA F. NAXU as thnlm#thuﬂw-m-
posed unit.®

“That on 19 Dee 41, upon my recommendation, the following
mh mhﬂ“h&phﬁﬁmﬂhmlhuﬁ,lmh City,
i
’ DECLASSIFIED
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1., CRUSITA F. NARU: 4« REMEDIOS RAMDS
2+ FPIA VERGARA 5s MARIA CABANLIG
3+ AUREA R. RIGOR 6. HEMERCIANA HUFANA®

@¢s In addition to their false olaims for USAFFE status, the
Frepondence of claims also allege service with the so-called Chohing
degimenty an unrecoguiszed unit of the Folsoms Fil-imerican guarrillag,
ecords of the @uerrille Affairs Division , PHILRYODM, indieate that
this organization was a post-liberation wit; conceived in freud and
aurtured by the contributlons of its ™members®, "Lt. Col." Iasidorc
SIAVIO is listed as the executive officer of this organization on roaters
found in the yarious 201 files, His death in December 1945, me later
than the liberetion period, so that he was alive and sctive when the
Cushing Neginent was being formed as & post~liberation unit, The bhogus
neture of this wnit is indicated by the atteched letter from the Comnande
ing General, FHILEYODM, and the synopsis of information on the reverse
of this letters (See Incl #2)s This, of course, further Lnpugns the
dntegrity of SIAFWO and shows that, as a prineipal in the formation of
8 fake guerrilla unit, he has demonstreted his willingness to attest to
nilitsry servicea not in fact performed and to confer nilitary atatus in
return for money payments.

6+ The cases considered are listed below. For convenience in
identification, Ammy ranks and serial numbers asslgned on processing

are used, Ihese are merely an additional identification and D0 IOT
CONFER ANY MILITARY STATUS,

VA USAFFE OUERRILLA DATE PLACED
NANE & IDENTIFACTION © Claim  STATUS STATUS  IN GLOSED FILE
1, OIAFNO, Isidoro (Decoased)  None Neg, legs
Capte Inf, 0=33569

(See 1ist attachod)

7e low canes are bolag uncovered at intervals, even though the
screening effort has now being completed. It is contemplated that, as
such cases are discovered, appropriate action will be taken to revicw
past determinations and initiate any necessary corrective sction for
the particulsr case in questien,
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. BARBADILLA, SALEDA T. JOYOBA, BANTOS VILLAREAL, JOBE R: VITASA,

=3 !x ___:.-.:.--,_-..- 2 | doncn.'e # b 7 _._,__ '-.'._: ;,_ 5 h
o WOt LA A e i e
That I was the Commanding Ufficer of the 3:
American (David's Command(, operating in Laguna e Lavite,
. Rizal and pertly in Manila. R
i LTy .l:-“ -%"-':}_.‘ -;1“.{:.-.

. That to the best of my knowledge the following pe
had been included in my casualty -roster were not certi
guerrillercs after going thru my original roster; that
sone werepresented to me as bonafled guserrillas by some
persons whom I trusted intc submitting to me a casualt:
after the liberation pepriod; that I have not known at
in which these persons rendered services in my organl
in taking the word of my offigers who submitted these 3
wihilch my affidavit has appeared, I sincerely belleved these
had been in my opinion had rendered services 1n my ‘guerrilla
nizetion ag hereintobefore upon thinking and upon going thry
records I can not certify that these men had any previous service
in oy orgenization. I am declaring the following perscns and/or
ecasualties as not genuine guerrilla membera of my command. =

L
f ¥

s

Sl

R
L] 3 : .:-" ,.:*:':E L = .'I
ZO1LC F. DULORFING, CEFERING ESTELLA, ANGELES 5IASON, PAULING
GUILLERMO M. MENDUZA and FEDERICC CONCEPOION. AL |
And that 1n my affldavits 1f there are any dlscrepancies which éh‘
gshould be taken into ccnesideration with regards to the persons or |
casualtlies that I have mentlioned in thils certificate, those persons
referred to in thle certificate to the best of my knowledge areée not @
bonafide guerrillas. My reason for certifying that these persons
were gertified guerrillas was that during the time I so certified
small affidavite was that I was approached by certaln officers cof my
command to certify that these men had served as members of our guer-
rilla organization. I can not at present recall the names of' e
persons who asked me to certlfy for tiese persons to have Been g v
rilla members of my organization, but I can certify now after ggi, - 1
gulting my records and asking Colonels Fernande C. Liwanag and Jusn
0. Rivera who were officers under my command that tliese persons were
not under our command durlng the Japanese Cccppation. To the best
of my knowledge I &n only certlfy that whatever dlserepancy may ap-
pear were made thru dlscrepancles presented by my unit commanders.
(David'B Goumand), as a whole has been to the best of my knowledge |
a legitimate guerrilla organization whlch during the Japanese Ceou= =
pation and during the liberation period fulfilled ite patriotic |
dutyto the Unlted Btates Government and to the Commonwealth of the
Philippines. It can be stated that in so presenting 8o many easual-
t1es of guerrillae and =0 many guerrillas who deserve that recogni-
+ion of both governments an eérror can be made due to the Tact that 1
tha large amount of men concerned andythe time that bas elapsed. I,
ag the Commanding Offleer could not keep tract of all the activities |
pof my men, therefore 1 had to teke the word of my unit commanding
officers as to the men who rende. ed continucus services for the, E:
cause of liberty, Justlee arnd sguality for the Unlted BStates Covérm= =
ment and the Commonwealth of the Fhillpplnes. Beo herelntofefore
to the best of my knowledge and bellef, ae Ph& ﬂammandln? [Tleer
»f the Fil-americen Irregular Troops (David's Conmand ), I wish to

IH‘:—L Hﬂﬁﬁ- '. Auehorii
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declare the above mentioc ;
organization, and if aé Eﬁieﬁig ?E:Eannt Saere. O Ry, guersl o
v T e as made to bellieve thal the
0 perscns were guerrillas which el

sonal records they could have not be 0 g R e
B wian 1o state tnat en guerrilla members of David's
=y at the above mentloned persons i
; - Eatbﬁig membere of our guerrilla mrsanizatlcnpand ?r :EUlu
Ler Into € cannally roster were sc ent i

5 | ntered without k -

7 E; zzgﬂzé;ggu:ngngziﬁgftgiz they w?re Eu&rrillﬁa. ngthzﬂgﬁat
les without my knowledgd of k o Il U S gl
reapectlive unit commanders thziwiﬁﬁ; :zé'luttnﬁ thi s G e
will not certify that t R daban hort el o
tion intoc =a ﬂau{uratlunh§¥ ;:i:aﬁge:iéili e A A e
instgﬂ mg perscnal recorde that they are Eﬁz?rgiiagertéférzggirdﬂ

8 the above mentloned perscns WwWh : ‘ 1
:;zangﬁtggguiﬁﬂurtithﬁrpcmmmand1néﬂgf??gégg?nlc&?%Tﬁgrzﬁij %Egt?;;

: t thoee persons are not and could t b

guerrilless mf dy organization. To explaln why R ase e
these facts 18 because I do not wlak f . S B e
R ny it dhich ssrved sl toc Jeopardlize the whole com-
cupation and during the 11b5r£i§§éngigii§jfdurE?E e N v
fa; the liberation of the Phillppines and fg; tfﬁte?fﬁﬁﬂﬁgaﬂi GEHEE'
moeracy which we Filiplnos have been brought y S . W NS
ipg that in Justlice and only democra - Bl ep e L N
shall accomplish its end. Therafnrec{ e A M e
?:tigi ;E:{igziman gan truthfully statz'iigtb:nzizzg éﬁii ﬁﬁgﬁéigé

inee durlng the Jpansss 5
;; ;E;tn:: gnilmantﬁan Eiate ei:ct fa:i:ugﬁtjgﬁi uici?rgguﬁgeinzu
_ uring e J apanese Qccupatlon, he would have kL

a diary of day by day actlon or he ’ E fﬂd b
lawyer or someéone wni had suchrpﬂ:eimg}dlﬁizil?ii i %Eve e
[E:: :2 kngulwhn{ had Rappened. I will grant tﬁu?cg h:vga::dgezﬁ

m a an will grant that such ta) st my ol
racter and word but do not forget tﬁa?izﬁggz iigi:k?gu;nst e
made in a perlod of time when a person had tnhtake ffe‘: Eé w;re
whome he belleve that they were truated and were rl?i i? sbiiile
facts. Therefore 1 wleh to humbly present m slde ﬁfﬂgr T hEd Bate
pened and 1f, I am Jjudge to be wrong tnen Licae WLO 1H£{t hﬁd-hﬁp_
ean not understend the guestion of Euﬁrrlilﬂﬂ afLE; *9 EL"mE i
of two to flve years or more. Can anyone guestion Lfatﬂént , pﬁrlad
have now declared shat I belleve to tie beat of m P‘E 1 Sftf 3
1ief is a true and corréct fact. I wilsh to alatejtfnchi; %E'a“d Re
a mistake in the previous attesting evidence that thL nen gt e

uerrillas 1 am now declaring that tLﬂEE. L-Eéﬂ& 1‘E§E g Sy
davits has appeared and those persons in wiiﬁl no a?fiﬁich g
t¢ the best of my Knowledge and belief they w;ra 0 GJH&F v
iy organizatlion. This fact I Bstate voluntarlil th}HEuErF¢;13§ b
any reward, without threat or any force or ai J1 *1%LEL {F:&iuu 4
1 believe that altnoupl there appears in m & .hh-”i ?L?““ bhaayes
certain facts and certaln perecns who 'ma’ ; h%blr} 1% pil ol ! 9
the best of my knowledge 1 am trying to Elngfiﬂi as_{?:rrl;lga tF
ﬂtrauwhn'ﬂ Fil-American Irregulat ffc{pe [;au1;1J eLEH?f PLEE L?E
{timate organizatlon which during the dark h--ur-E ;Tmﬁdqdi ihtﬂ-lt-
and the United Btates of Ameérilca WETE ruéiﬁr EP&L .+L u?-ﬂfdn of
who would be the victoricus partvy, Iy wué:517£a “?i ;{;le?t )
the best of my knowledge and bel lef #HEEHLElch1I£fa$J Eir ;Egth
ystice of demoerac) of the United States CGovernment and the Com-

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂlth of the Fhilippines.

1 hgreby dertify that I have read all of the foregoling state-
nente; that they are made by me as true and eorrect with full knows

.‘ . 4 J LT -

¢ the fect that severe penaltles involving Tines and lmpri-

ledege £O1
gonment are prescribed by Actl Ic 2667, Fhilippine Leglslature, ins
acted February 2 1016 end 64111l in force and effeet {Artlele AV,

Fhillppine conetlitutlon and Art. 566 Revised Fenai wodE).
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EAWIT Cavite (Jimene

Handog, Fortumate L.
Santiago, Alberto K.
Hieta, Dominador F.
Rieta, Delfin V.
Hamirez, Andres F.

- e E e S = = = = o E= s

Calamba, Laguna (Marking's Fil-Am.Trps)

zorilla, Marcelec F.

Da jes, Warcelc C.
Arguelles, Filemon
Garride,” Cirisce
Fortillanc, Domasino

Majavjay, Leguna (Straughn (David's Command)

Solisa, Felix

L

vala, Jala, Rizal (FAIT David's Counmand)

uellezai Hilarion
Labro, "icente
Carungay, Eulcgio
Gellido, lodesto
Mirando, Benito
Bellido, Felicisimo
Vidalleo, Miguel

- aam a e a O e = = s O = & A

Fawit, Cavite (FACGF)

- vimenez, Liberatc C.

-— o e s - i e aa i =

10th Ipr, (Cavite)

Canalesa, Lucianc D.
Escritor, Aproniano
Glor, Felix

Yarin, GualbericL.
Aguilar, 'icente F,
Maz, Marcial
Basco, Gregorio
OUliveros, Luis ~,
Villarcsa, Eulegic

Atimonsn, juezon (Catarrcja)

Cervantes, Anismo M.
Castilio, Jose F,
Mekayan, Agapito Z.
Maaliw, Juan V,
Gercia, Honorate
Lastro, Jr. Alfredo C,

Catarpc ja, Victor G,
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LGERD=T201
SIAPNO, Isidoro, Capt. 0=33569 21 April 50

P T G 4

Chief, 'S, Vets Br. Chief', Records Br

1. There i3 evidence in this huﬁquartlrl that indicate many irregu~
larities in the alleged inductions of the lst ND during the pericd 18-23
Dec 1941 at Hagulo, Vouniain Provinge. Reference: field investigation
eonducted by ¥f, Green this headquarters during Nov 1949,

Sisto, Alexander - our file #1885
Valdesz, Eliseo 0 - our file #1886
loveno, Federico - our file #1887
Aatorgn, Nasario -~ our file /1888

2. There are also many misrepresentations that have been made in the
filing of elaims for Veteran's benefits. This has been done to the extent
that a1l claime originating in the Baguioc Area are doubtful.

a. Affidevite are "manufactured” and "True Copies" cortified to
without any due regard for originals.

b. AGRD forms have been mimeogra FndinBlminhme;hKrulgnr
ond sold to dubious elaimants for 732.50. (Ref: elaim of Sisto, Alexander
our file #1885, which states in part, "My claim papers were prepared by
Joseph Krueger, who eharged me Slll for all the papers and forme inclu-
ding stamps."). (Gertificate attachad) Bl 2

¢. Attention is also invited to the attached "Juan dela Cruz"
letter which makes the acocusation that Capt. Isidoro Siapno was in business
of furnishing documents supporting military service in return for mone=-
tary consideration., ‘'Although this letter is not comidered proof that such
o sitnation exisfed, 1t 1s nevertheless, interesting to see how closely the
accusation parallels the conclision reached by this headquarters regarding
the wldespread irregularities in claims for military lu'l?_q- in t.hi 1st MD,

d. Attaghed iz a form executed in the case of Sergio hpp:n:.
This form was printed by a commereial printing firm %ir use in establishing
"Proof of USAFFY Status" and to be used in the City of Baguio, Philippines,
It is quite obviocus that this form was “tailor made" to l.mlndltq the many
fraudulent elaims emanating from Bagulo Area. ., . . *'-

3+ The above subjeet individual is alleged to have made many unautho-
rised inductions of personnel; from Baguio Area, into the lst VD of the
USAFFE.

DECLA%Slm?
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Le Informaticn in the 201 file of subject individual alleged indue-
tion into the lst MD, USAFFE un the 18th December 1941, This is false,
as neither Pistrict Commander Verscsa nor . djutant Navarrc had the au-
~ thority tc induct anyone before 20 Dec 41, -

5. & thorough search of all available PA Archives has been made in
thic case. Subject individual's neme dces not appear, (Sed DS-F-13A in
this file)

s In an affidavit dated 26 Nov 47, lamuel L, Verzosa statés, "That
all the persomnel of the lst Military District including the late Capt,
Isidoro Siapnc who was called to active duty on 18 Dee 4] and indueted
into the USAFF: by my District Adjutant on that same date were absorled
into the 1lth Infantry Division, USAFFE while we were still in Baguio
City." However, District Adjutant did not have the authority to make
inductions prior to 20 Deec 41l. Maj, Verzosa himself states that he was
not indueted into the USAFFE until 20 Dee 41. (Ref: field investigation
conducted by Mr, Green, this headquarters during Nov 49) It is quite
cbvious that this headquarters cannot accept the affidavié of Li. Col,
Verzosa.

7« In an affidavii dated 18 Jul 45, (attached) Thomas T, Asuncion
states, "That on or about Dec 18 1941, I was a witness to the induction
of Capt. Isidorc Siapno into the service of the USAFFE, the ceremony of
which was conducted by said Vajor Manuel L. Verzosa through his adjutant
2nd Lieutenant Edmunde Navarro, Inf, in the headquarters of Camp Allen,
1=t Wilitary District, Bagulo, W%, Province." Lt. Col, Verzosa verified
this in his affidavit (attached), that the induetion was made by his
adjutant. District Adjutant did not have the authority to induet anyone
prior to 20 Dec 41. (Memo of E.G. Navarro dtd 3 Feb -50)

8. Memo for iogord of Capt. Allan W, Mitchell in par., 5 (copy
attached) atates, "Although service might be credited for five days
(18 Dec 41 to 23 Dec 41) veteran's benefits should be denied inasmuch as
claimant had fraudulently accepted arrears in pur'hludh: misrepreasen-
tation of facts (Par, 2)." These dates are wrong and cannot be acdmitted
into the record of subjeot individual as will be noted elsevhere in this
vemo for Hecord. Ne induction could have been made into the lst MD before
20 Dee 41. Therefore, it is believed subject individual cannot be en-
titled to USAFFE service.

9, Allegod guerrilla sevice of subject individual eamnot be granted
due to insufficient evidence to substantlate the facts alleged. (Ref:
yemo for Record by Capt. A. W. Fitchell and alsc indorsement of laj.

J. B. Chesson attached).

10. It is quite obvious that this case is bullt up on a series of
false affidavits purporting to prove military service,

a, That the case of SIAPNU, Isidoro in a claim for USAYFT and
Guerrilla “ervice be determined NEGATIVE,

DECLASSIFIED \
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b. That all affidavits executed by subject individual be dis-

honored.

¢. That 201 {1le of subject individual be marked "Clo31D"

and placed in Security Storage.

d. That a copy of any other affidavit executed by STAPND,

Isidore be placed in his 201 file for further reccrd and comparison.

OTTO STANHISER
Capt AGD
Chief, IS, Vets Br

10 Incls:

1.
2e
3.

e

D
é-l
7o
g,
9.

10,

/ar

Aff, by T.T. Asuncion dtd 18 Jul 45

Aff. by W.L. Verzosa dtd 26 Nov 47

Aff. by V. L. Versosa dtd 18 Jul 45

Memo for Record sgd by A, W, Mitchell dtd 25 Oct 48
C/N by J. B. Chesson, Jr dtd 28 Oot 48

Cert, by B, . Sisto dtd 7 Jan 50

Cert. by VN.L. Verzcsa dtd 7 Feb 50

Aff, by 8, Domogen dtd 19 Nov 49

Lty of J dela Crus dtd 1 “pr 48
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AGED<V 200
UEEET:-'S."H Manuel L. Lt. Col. ﬂ-13-45 25 APT 50
Chief, DS, Vets Br. Chief, Records Br,

1. The sbove nemed individual has been frequently mentioned as an
alleged inducting o’ficer for the USAFFE during the period 17 = 23 Dec 41 a®

Camp He T, Allen, Baguio.

2, TField Investigetion and recoxrd checks have shown that many of the
elaims based on induetions by Lt. Col. (then Major) VERZOSA are frauduvlent and
that the majority of the rémaining allegations regarding USAFFE status for
persons residing in or near Bagulo City are based on slleged inductions by
"Capt.® lsidoro SIAFNO, who is, in turn, allsged %o have been inducted by

VERZOGA,

3+ Lt. Col. VERDSA has made several conflicting stetements regarding
his induction actlvities at Headquarters, lat MD, Baguio City. Copies of these
affidavits are attached. ;

4. In an affidavit dated 7 Feb 50 by Manuel L. Verzosa, he states that,
®at the time 1 was District Commander of the 1lst MD and inducting the reservists
into the USAFTE, myself and my District Adjutant were the only persona author-
ized to make such inductions. I left such inductions to my Adjutant which wms
part of his normal function."

In an affidavit dated 2 Feb 50, Verzosa presents the information
that after the outbreak of the lar II, he we inducted inte the USAFFE on
20 Dec 41l. That during the period between 21 - 23 Decembar, he recall the
names of some of the men whom he inducted personally but none of the enlisted
men. He states; I do remember Iaidore Siapno and Li. Disini who were among
the first to be inducted together with Maj. Aberin, Felix Agude, Dionisie
Alefriz snd.Sinforosc Fangonil.

In an affidavit dated 16 of July 1945 in favor of "Capt.® Siapnos
VERZSA states "that on or about the 18th of December 1941, in purasuvance of
instructions received by me from Headquarters, PA, Manila, orders were issued
out in my District ealling all reserve officers to active duty. That "Capt/®

DECLASSIFIED
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U;ILEQEIL;‘ Wenuel Le« Lis {hll' ﬂ'—llkﬁ

(Continuation)

Isddoro Siaspno wes one who reported on or about 18 Dee 41 and was inducted the
geme day by my District Adjutant.

In another affidavit mede upon request of the widow of alleged
%Cgpt.® Siapno he ssserts thot at the outbreak of the war il, he was assigned
as Disiriel Commander of the lst MD that all the personnel of the 1st MD in-
cluding the late "Cept." Slapno, was elso inducted into the USAFFE on 18 Dec FA RS
It will be noted here that he, himeel{ wes not inducted into the USAFFE until
the mm of necember. As shown in his affidavit dated 2 Feb 50, which 1=
atta .

On the 3rd of Peb 50, Lt, Fdmundo G. Navarvo, Adjutant of lst MD,
made an affidavit in wkich he testifies Lbat on the 20th of Dec 1941, all of
the Headquarters persomnel of the lat MD were inducted intc the USAFIT by
Maj. Bverett L. Worner, and that I received instructions by radio from lead~
quarters, FA, authoriszing the District Commander or the District Adjutant
to induck resorvists and that I vemember that I wes not authorized to induct
any eivilians into USAFFE at that tine.

5, It is believed that Lt. Col, VERZSA, by thess conflicting and
contradictory statements, has demonstrated his unacceptability as en effiant
for gapes involving the lst MD,

6. It ia, thereiore, recommended:

o, That the 201 File of VERZSA, Manuel L., Lt.Col.y 0~1146 be
marked *CIOSED® and placed in Sscurity Storage.

be That sny affidovit executed by VERIDSA be regurded with extreme
caution before acceptance.

es That a copy of my other affidavit executed by VERIDSA be placed
in his 201 File for. y record and ocomparison,

OTI0 STANHISER
AGD
£, 18, Veta. Br.
DECLASSIFIED

[ Authority NNT) §5307F |




5 Inmlss

1~ Affyt dtd 18

g Jul 45 by Manuel T,
2« = " 26 Nov 47 by Menuel I,
3« Cert. dtd 2 Feb 50 Y Manuel L.
- Ei-mmmt opy) dtd 7 Feb
5% (Pbotostat opy) dtd 3 Feb
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HEADQUARTERS
ADJUTANT GENERAL RECORDS DEPOSITORY
PHITIPPINES COMMAND (AIR FORCE) AND THIRTEENTH AIR FORCE
AFO 900

Do Not Remove From Attached Sheets

FILE MNO,
SUBJECT: ALIBGED INDUCTIONS BY CAPT. ISTDORO SIAPNO DATE: 17 Feb 50

FROM: Chief, DS, Veterans Branch  TO:
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

1., It has been determined that allermed inductions by Capt. Isldoro

SIAFNO at Camp H., T. Allen and other places in and around Baﬁui0=ﬂity are
not allowable as a basis of USAFEE status,

2, Isidoro SIAPNO had no authority to induct into the USAFFE,

3. It has been revealed by Field Investipgation that these alleged
inductions are spurious and that they have been used for fraudulent purvposes
to obtain benefits from the U.S. Government on the basis of a military sta-
tus which did not exist.

Le Heference:
8. Feport of Field Investigation in the cases of,

- VAIDEZ, Eliseo 0,, File #1886
- NOVENO, Federico P., File #1887
- ASTORGA, Nasario, File #1888
- SISTO, Alexander, File #1885

o

b. CONFIDENTIAL check sheet, Chief, DS, Vets, Br., AGRD, dtd
17 Feb 50, Subj: BAGUIO RIN*, (See casze files af TAWAS, pedrn, KRUEGER

Josephs SIAPNO, Isidro in "CLOSED" Files)

5, Any case alleging USAFFE service based on induction by ISIDORO
STAPNO will be adjudicated MEGATIVE for such status and will be sent %o

"GLNSED" Files as an attempted fraud.
!EE xx;’“{f” ;<§§;;;qi;;;:zfilﬂf__.

OTTO STANHISER
Capt AGD
Chief, DS, Vets, Br,
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CERIIEICATIE
1, _MANUEL L. VERZOSA

y 56 ycars old, Married | residing
at ﬂ.hnln, Rizal Ci%Y horoby doclurc that I understand my rights

under tho Constitution ond luws of tho Phillppinos; that I ulso undor=

stand that my statomcnts will be uscd to prove matoriil facts in support
of a clalm for voterans benefite from tho United Statos govormment, and
thit I make thosc statoments voluntarily and froolys

Thie statement 1s in amplification of my sworn certificate
exscuted 2nd February 1950.

At the time I was Bistrict Commander of the lst Military
Distriet and induct reservists into UBAFFE in Bagulo, my-

self and my District Adjutant, Lt. Edmundo Bavarro, were the I/
only persons authorized to make such inductions.

1 ;!% ﬁﬂﬁ
inductions to my Adjutant which was part of his norma ctlons.
e e o b

At no time was authority delegated to any person other than

myself or my Adjutant to make inductions into USAFFE. I had no

authority to make such delegatlon of authority, and when we eva=-
* ouated Bagule on 23rd December 1941, no person was left from

the lst Military District authorized by me to make induections
" in USAFFE,

o

:
LI

i

I horeby cortify thut I (have road) ( 11l of the
forogoing statcmente; that thoy urc mude by mo a8 truc ind corroct with

. 1
full koowlcdge of the faet that scvore penultics invelving fince und
imociscraunt ure preseribed by Act No, 2567, Philippinc Logislaturo

Enyetod Fobruary 3, 1910 und still in forec apd off.ct (Article YV :

Philiopin Constitution and Art, 366 Roviscd Ponul Code 3

)
P A zﬁ.

MANUEL L.
Signature
Nitnceascd by the undcrsigned on T'I.h___ day of hhmrl_. 1950 ,
st _The Times Bldg, Manjla.

——— L

e
8/ /7{ ‘?-'?»(tﬁﬂ‘:/ (s e, ,/6’1/(-([."- e
t/ R. GPEEN

Fiold Invoatigator,

Us 8¢ Army

FrepeLe e 9
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AT TMONAN

WMay 1950 - The case of Canales, Luciano D. was sent for Field Investi-
gation in order to determine proof of service, date and circumstances sur-
rounding death of subject individual. 1In the course of field investigation
it was found that in the particular place of Atimonan, Tayabas where subject
was a resident, there were many atiempts made by some residents to defraud the
U. 5. Government for alleged guerrills services. It was proven that in this
particular case of Canales, Luciano, whose name is listed in the casualty roster
of a unit, has in fact doubtful service which prima facie proves that his name
was included one way or the other in the recognized casu®lty roster through

means questionable in character.

12 Oct 50 = Making the case of Canales, Luciano as a basis, an examination
of the casuslty roster was made particularly those individvals who resided in
the place of Atimonan, Quezon. The names, Castillo, Jose; Makayan, Agapito Z.;
Maaliw, Juan V.; Garcia Honorato; Cervantes, Aniano; and Castro Jr. Alfredo C.;
were picked from the casuvalty roster of the Hunter's ROTC Grla. 201 files of
the atove names were requested from Record EBranch and were sent to Investigation
Branch for field investigation. In the course of investigation, infn;matimnﬁ
developed indicated that attempts to defraud U. S. Government were again found.
It has been determined that the above named individuels although carried in the
casualty roster did not in faet render any valid Grla service and that thesa .
names were fraudulently placed in the roster. During the progress of investi-
gation, one Capt. Viector 8. Catarroja was found to be responsible one way or

another in the perpetustion of having fraudulently placed such names in the

recognized ﬂauuﬁﬁty roster. i

On the 5th of Jan 1951 Capt. Victor 5. Catarroja wes interviewed by Maj.

Green, Investigaetion Branch this office. The casualty roster qiLth' Hunter's i

|
1

ROTG was shown to hiw and was asked if he was willing o go over such Epﬂiiﬁ k

f J? -
and look ower the names of those people who are on the roster and # ﬂ%dwv* J__.-

& v . :.'- _."_ i
in fact perform services as mamharé#bf his unit. This he ﬂiﬁilnd stated that ,rA
the following individusls were not dead nor hgvyrﬂﬁﬂfifun&urad eny valid Grla : 1

- 5
services |
i 1 fa y s !
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Aguilar, Forfirio J;"*'!}gﬁ& & Castillo, {w pr

| X i ar W g | el '

Ambas, Emilio % Colantes, lariane
Cervantes, Aniano Garcia, Honorate ' _ j
P o




Eseritor, Aproniano Hutalia, Diego

Garin, Gualberto Makayon, Agapito
Imperial, Gangerico Canales, Luciano
Farco, Andres Maaliw, Juan

The 201 files of the above name subject individuals were drawn from
Record Branch together with all those 201 files of individuals who ware alleged
to have been members of the Special Co. Hunters EﬂTﬂf%EFthat 201 files were
found the affidavite and/or any memorandum with referesnce to or initiated by,

gaid Capt. V. Catarroja were all redetermined on 4 Apr 51.

MAJAYJAY

24 May 50 - Case of Solisa, Felix R. was sent to field investigation
for the purpose of obtaining proof of military service from the date of in-
duction, and eircumstances surrounding death of subject. Subject's name
although appearing in the recognized casualty roster of Straughn FAIT (David's
Command) is shown in the 201 file as a Mayor of Majayjay, Laguna at the time of
his alleged capture.

During the course of fisld investigation the claimant in this case refused
to make any statement without the presence of her lawyer, Mr. Union Cayanan.
Further conversation with the claimant, however, stated that he 4id not know
subject was a guerrilla until after the liberation Ef the Fhilippines and that
his claim was handled by Mr. Cayanan and one Alberto Villarazs, who was & former
guerrilla member who knew all the persons that would be in a position to attest
subject aetivities. 4s a result of the above information,seversl names ware
teken from the casuslty roster of Straughn FAIT (David's Command) with residence
in Majayjay, Lﬂguna,'and were sent for Field Invastigatinn;

In an interview with Col. J. C. Estrella, he declared that the following

persons andfur casualties is not guerrills members of his command;

Zoilo F, Dolorfine Caferino Estella
Angeles Biasson Faulino Sarsadilla
Saleda T. Joyosa Santos Villareal
Jose R, Vitasa Guillerme WM. Msndoza
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The 201 files of the above subject individuale were therefore requested

from Records Branch and sdjudicated negative on Jun 1951,

JALAJALA

On 10 Feb 50 - the case of Bellido, Felicisimo Z. was sent for field
investigation. HResults of the field investigation revealed that although sub-
ject individusl's name sppears in the casualty roster, he did not render valid
guerrilla service and that documents of claimantz in Jalajala were prepared by
one Hilarion Belleza, Occupation Vice-Mayor.

In view of the above, on 29 Nov 50 the following names were %taken or

(chosen) from the casvalty roster of Straughn FAIT (David's Command):

Corneta, Filemon Perez, Felicisimo
Wedina, Teofilo Villaran, Apolonio
Mendoza, Francisco Igno, Felipe del R.
Senia, Gregorio Lawas, Nazario

Lawas, Isidro
whoss regidence are Jalajala, Rizal.
Field Investigation revealed that the azbove subject individuals did not
render active full time continuous guerrilla service. Cases were therefore,

determined negative on Jun 1951.

51ST INF. MMD. ECLGA.

On 19 Aug 49 = The case of Ricardo A. Sanchez mas sent for fleld investi=-
gation. This investigation revealed that several units of 5lst Inf, WMMD, ECLGA
are allepedly conducting some sort of guerrilla training on Binuvangan Island.

Thaet on 22 Nov 44 an unidentified Huk Units raided that rlace. Several officars

and EM were killed and among these are:

Sanchez, Ricardo A. Gregorio, Federico de 1la G
Bienvenido, Kicardo V. Grespo, Marcelo M.
Rique, Eleuterio 4. Tatlonghari, Albino C.

Villanueva, Francisco

It hae been determined that theme individuals performed no valid guerrilla

gervice. Cases were determined nepative on Jun 1951,
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~ BAGUIO RING
l. The screening of Baguio Ring cases was started on 16 Feb 1950,
2. Initially, this screening began with study of the Report of Field

Investigation of Mr. Donzld R. Greem in the cases of Alexander Sisto, Eliseo

e

Valdesz, Federico Noveno and Nasario Astorga and of the interrelated case
files of the various affiants to their alleged military service and activities.
3. Eventually, this office screening was expanded to include AGRD
Archive records containing the journals and accounts of persons who were pro-
minent in the Mt. Frovince resistance movement during the invasion period.
These sources were particularly useful in providing background material and
general historical perspective. (See Incl #1).
e In the course of this study and sereening, a total of 94 201 files
have been examined.
5. The more noticesble irregularities are set forth below:

&. The major portion of claims for USAFFE service are based on
alleged inductions by "Capt" Isidoro SIAFNO. Since SIAFNO has been deter-
mined to be not, himself, a USAFFE nor an suthorized inducting officer nor
to have held even pseudo induction cersmonies nor to have organized or par-
ticipated in any resistance effort whatscever, these claims are obviously
false and of fraudulent intent.

Affidavit of Edmundo G. Navarro dated 3 Fab 1950 and Manuel L.
Versosa dated 7 Feb 1950 attached.

In & certificate certified by Dionisio Mareyag dated 19 Jan 50
at Baguio City he states, "I was inducted into the USAFFE Dec 41 by Capt. —
Isidoro Siapno who 1s now deceased. I do not remember the exact date but I

believe it was 17 Dec 41. There were abtout thirty (30) men inducted at this o

1
-

time in one group."
| "We never had regular military formation and I do not remember
the names of &all the enlisted men."
"On the 27th of Dec L] we were sdvised by SIAPNO to hide in #khe
mounteine because the Jepeness were ecoming to Baguio,"
"pDuring the time I was in the USAFFTE there wers never actual
engagements with the Japanese. SIAFNO received orders that we were to join

the foreces in Bataan but none of the USAFFE in Bagnio went to Bataan exeept

Au’i’hﬁf; i/ g s




the regular army in Camp Allen who were able to go down about the 12th of

December 41.

b. A small portion of the elaims for USAFFE status are baged
on alleged inductions by Lt. Col. (then Major) Manuel L. VerSosa or his
adjutant, Capt. (then 28 Lt) Edmundo G. Navarro, Lt, Col, VERSOSA'S own
Lestimony regarding these inductions is contradictory but his final affidavit,
made when he knew that we had became suspicious of these Baguic inductions,
would indicate that he conducted no inductions in person but left such in-
ducticns to NAVARRO, a normal procedurs. NAVARRD asserts that he did induct
many persons into the USAFFE but that these were all reservists and not
civilian volunteers, because he was not authorized to induet any but reser-
vists. Both VEREOSA and NAVARRO state that no inductions were made prior to

20 Dec 41 or after 22 Dec 41, since VERZOSA and NAVARRQ were not, themselves,

inducted until 20 Dec 41 and they both left Bapulo along with all membars of

their command on the morning of 23 Dec 41. The statement of Lt. Col. (then

Maj)} Everette L. Warner, who inducted VERZOSA and NAVARRO shows that the
probable date of this induction was 21 Dec 41. Since many of the alleged
VERZOSA or NAVARRO inductions are claimed for dates earlier than 20 Dec 41
and still others are those of persons who claim to have bteen civilian volun-
teers, it is obvious thet such claims are false and made with fraudulent

intent. (Affvt attached). (See Exh. 1 & 2)

c. At least one minor-DIONISIO ALAFRIZ JH. is alleged to have been
inducted into the USAFFE by VERZOSA and SIAPNO, His 201 file shows that he
was only 16 years old at the time of this alleged induction.

Joint affidavit of Dionleio F. Alafriz and Alejo A, Ham dated
24 Nov 1947 attached.

d. A number of femsles also claim induction by SIAFNO. Some
of these claimed induction as medical assistants (not nurses) &nd others as
telephone operators, Obviously, these claims are fraudulemt, since there was
no women's corps in the USAFFE. Lt, Col. Warner, in his certified stalement,
ceste further light on the alleged "services" of the female telephome opera-
tors when he states that he had to train Philippine Scouts to operate ths

telephone ewitchboards at Baguio because all the eivilian women operators

had left.
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Extract taken from a certified Report of Everett Lauman
Warner, Lt. Co., FA, Army of the United States, attached, and affidavit of
Crusita F. Naku attached.

In an affidavit dated 1 July 46 executed by Guzman A, Csrino,
he state, "That shortly after ‘my induction, Captain Siapno asked me about
the possibility of organizing a group of women to help the Army; that in
compliance with the request of Captain Siapno, I highly recommended then
Miss CRUSITA F. NAKU as the leader of the above proposed unit.!

"That on 19 Deec 41, upon my recommendation, the following women

were inducted by Captain Siapno at Kayang Street, Baguio City, viz:

1. CRUSITA F. NAKU 4. REMEDIOS RAMOS
2. FPIA VERGARA 5. MARIA CABANLIG
3. AUREA R. RIGOR 6. HEMERCIANA HUFANAY

e. In addition to their false claims for USAFFE status, the pre-
rondence of claeims also alleged service with the so-called Cushing Regiment,
an unrecognized unit of the Folsoms Fil-American guerrillas. BKRecords of
the Guerrilla Affairs Division, FHILRYCOM, indicate that this organization
was a post-liberation unit; conceived In fraud and nurtured by the contri-
butions of its "members®. "Lt. Col® Isidoro SIAFNO is listed as the execu~-
tive officer of this organizetion on rosters found in the various 201 files,
His death in December 1945, was later than the liberation period, so that he
was alive and active when the Cushing Regiment was being formed as a post-
liberation unit. The bogusnature of this unit is indicated by the attached
letter from the Commanding General, FHILRYCOM, and the synopsis of informa-
tion on the reverse of this letter. (See Incl #2). Thie, of course, further
impugns the integrity of SIAFNO and shows thst, as a principal in the.for=-
mation of a fake guerrilla unit, he has demonstrated his willingness to
attest to military serviees not in faet performed and to confer military
etatus in return for money payments.

&. The cases considered are listed below. For convenience in identi=
fication, Army ranks and gerial numbers assigned on processing are used,

These are merely en addiitional idantiffeation and DO NOT CONFER ANY MILITARY

STATUS.
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VA USAFFE GUERRILLA DATE FLACED
KAME & IDENTIFICATION CLAIM STATUS STATUS It CLOSED FILE

L, SIAFNO, Isidoro (Deceased) None Neg. Nag,
Capt. Inf. 0-33569

(8ee list attached)

7. New cases are being uncovered &t interwvals, even though the
screening effort has now being completed, It is contemplated that, as such
cases are discovered, appropriate action will be taken to review past deter-
minations and initlate any necessary corrective getion for the particular

case in guestion.
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On 24 May 50 the case of (Jimenez) Fructuoso Macagaling was sent for

Field Investigation to obtain:
(a) Proof of guerrilla service
(b) Proof and circumstances surrounding death of subject
(¢) Proof of Parentage of subject.

- During the course of Field Investigation, informetion deweloped indi-
cated that subject never had any guerrilla status nor did hils step-brother
Major Liberato €. Jimenez. That the mother and father of the subject were
told in 1945 to present a claim to the U. S. Army as the subject had been
entered as a guerrilla casuslty, and this was the first time that the mother
of subject heard the subject was a guerrilla member. That the intent to
defraud the U. 5. Government in thls claim can be blamed on Major Liberato
C. Jimenez, as he prepared the roster and all the papers in thls case.

It has also been determined that the subject was buying and selling
scrap iron for the manufacture of "boat spikes" for sale to the Japanese
Navy during the later part of 1943 and early 1944.

As a result of the above findings, the following individuals who are
carried in the Casualty Roster of "D" Co, Tst Bn » 10th Regt, FACGF whose
Commanding Officer was L, C. Jimenez natives of Kawit, Cavite were taken
from the Records Branch and sent to Field Inwestigation on 27 Sep 50.

HANDOG, Fortunato L.
SANTIAGO, Alberto
RIETA, Dominador F.
RIETA, Delfin V,
RAMIREZ , Andres P.

The above named individuals were found to have performed mo walid
guerrilla service and their names were frudulently inserted in the Casualty
Roster,

Above cases were adjudicated Negative on 23 Apr 51,
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FIELD MEMORANDUM

SUBJECT: SOLER, Manuel Case # 4208

Informs tlon was obtalned whileh pertains to Cases No. 4286
and 4479 concerning the guerrillas actlvitles ln the surrounding
vieinity of Atimonan, Quezon as follows. Before the outbreak
of World War II the province of Quezon, from the munlclpallty
of Atimenan to Lopez thls was a rabld pro-Japanese area. When
the Armed Forces of the US and the Commonwealth of the Pnlllip-
pines were defeated, there were persons who took unfalr advan-
tage of thls defeat by becoming not only frienda to ihe enemy
but as accomplices to the enemles dastardly actlon againast those
who belleved that in the end vietory would be won by the jus-
tiflable pecple. In the mentlioned areas from Atlmonan o Lopez,
there were many who took the advantage of seelng tne opportunity
in plagéing themselves as Gods who could control the lives of
the majority. In the 1iu1n1t£ of Atlmpnnni it was known by those
few couragecus guerrillas as "Little Tokyo"; because of the
staunch support that was glven by persons who tried to selze an
opportunity not to improve their country but for their own per-
sonal aggrandizement. It la s known fact that In these aréas
Vera kept the only known reslstance during tae Japanese occupa=
tion. In the two cases now presented and numerous others the
deaths of the so called guerrillas were attributed to the Japa-
nese or their followers. The undersigned questions these deatis
of suppcsedly so called guerrlllas for the following reasonsi
The areas dezcrlbed were under the control of Japaneae aympha-
tlzere who in many instances murdered pecple for unknown motlves.
Many of these executions were commltted for the followlng rea-
sone: Before the war there were two political partles, cne
known a8 the "Ganaps" and the other was the Naticnallsta party.
During the Jaspanese occupation, the Nationallsta pariy refused
to submit to the aggressors and their satelites who were the

"Ganape, Makspilies and Yolns", but instead fought thelr own
private war against the enemy. Unfcrtunately many of these exe-

cuted persons were not guerrillas but when 1t became known that
persone were going to be pald for thelr guerrilla activitles

then in these areas there arocsee a large guerrilla force. A
guerrilla force of such vast number of men that when 1t ls ta-

ken into account the large number of persons who were pro-Japa=-
nese then the Japanese and their collaborators could have been
exterminated. It 1 a known fact that some of the alleged
guerrilla organlzations were not in exlstence because durlng
the llberation of the Phillippines when the American Army was in
this sector they had a guerrilla officer who was supposed to
contact the guerrillas operating in thls sector. Thls guerrilla
officer bad to go to Lopez where he contacted Vera, the guerril-
la resistanceleader. He dld not contaet any guerrilla leader

in Atimonan nor in ite surrounding vieinity. It is logleal to
believe that if there had been any guerrillas operating in Atli=
monan and 1te vielnlty, undoubtedly thls offloer would have
contacted these guerrillas. It 1s loglesal to state that the
guerrillas in these areas undoubtedly are llberation guerrillas

or either they became guerrillas through the ald of unscrupu=
lous perscns. The Information as presented above was obtalned
by the undersigned from various sources. Naturally as consi-
derable time has elapsed and the injustlce committed by the

perpetrators in many instances, the persons suffering this in-
justice are reluctant in glving information. An example is
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Re Fleld Memorandum of SOLER, MANUEL (Cont.) Fage 2

given, the present Chief of FPolice of Atlmonan, Primltlvo L.
Maras igan 1s supposed to have been a F.0. whe did not surrender
but became a guerrilla, and yet informatlon from rumors reveals
that Primitive L., Maraeigan was a member of the Bureau of CQons-
tabhulary.

The evidence that was ocbtalned on 29 May 1951 from afflants,
Manuel Csmpocmanes, Blenvenido Susada and Frimiilvo L. Maraslgan
reveala that the persons listed In Incls. C=1 and C-2 were not

guerrillas. The inclosure C-2 are the names of men plcked out by
the above mentloned afflants from the roster of Unrecognlzed
Enllsted men of the 46th Inf Regt. 44th Hunters ROIC Divielon

on flle at thls headquarters. These men were nct guerrlllas and

supposedly this roster was complled by Vietor Catarrola. It ls
reascnavle to belleve that with the evidence presented 1n cases

4288 and 4479, any future cases that may pertain to the area of
Atlmonan, these cases could be determlned on the evidence present-
ed herein. The evidence as presented in Incl. F 1s from an accep=-
table afflant but 1t le legleal to belleve that affliant le pre=-
senting correet hlstorlecal facte. Thle evidence tends to prove

that in 1945 during the liberation there was conly one known guerrl-
1lla unlt whlech was under the command of Gen. Guadencic Vera.

‘. LTy ,ﬂz«/@fﬂi
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28 June 1951
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MEMO FOR RECORD

22 o/ 19,

AGRD=201
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The 201 files of the following subject individuals who were alleged
members of the 2lst Inf, MMD, ECLGA, and who were reported as casualties as
of 1 Dec 1944, have been withdrawn from Records Branch for redetermination:

a. ALCANTARA, Alfonso e. MWORALES, Agapito
b. CASTRO, Julian f. RUBEN, Fermin
c. JAVIER, Nicasio g. POBLETE, Faustino

d. MAGAT, Luis

It has been determined that these subject individuals became casualty
through zonification and not because of valid guerrilla service. Further,
that although their names appearf on the recognized casualty roster, it has
bsen determined that they did not perform valid guerrilla service.

The case of MATHEWS, Edgardo, "E" Co, 2d Bn, 21st Inf, MMD, ECLGA, was
sent to Investigation Branch for fiéld investigation to determine proof of
valld guerrilla service and proof of death. Field Investigation revealad
that subject individual was taken prisoner during the zonifica®ion on 1 Dee
44. Further, that the guerrilla unit of which subject individual was an
alleged member was on a "stand by" status until the American liberating forces
arrived in the Philippines.

Affiant Eugenio Castillo (who is unacceptable in this headquarters), in
an affidavit dated 30 Jul 45, states that subject individual (Mathews) was
killed in action by Japs on 1 Dec 44 for performing his duty of serious mis-
sion,

Subject individual's name appears on the recognized casualty roster of
the 21st Inf, MMD, ECLGA, but it has been determined that the case is Negative
and that the subject individusl did not perform any valid guerrilla ssrvice.

In view of the above findings, it has been determined that the above

listed subject individuals are also Negative for recognized guerrilla status
even the their names appear on Recognized Casualty Roster.
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